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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TETEEE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AEFEMBHEE
RMB’000 ARETT
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ETN\E —TTNF —TTF T —F ZB-F
Revenue WA 903,298 1,247,355 1,782,447 2,406,212 3,097,511
Gross profit EF 187,040 293,435 437,582 580,594 749,150
Profit before tax B A A 117,137 181,511 281,474 371,533 420,102
Profit attributable to owners RRREBA
of the Company FEIE R 103,491 151,067 216,419 290,850 328,644
Basic earnings per share (RMB)  SREAREF|(ARE)
(Restated) (g57)) 0.219 0.271 0.363 0.472 0.521
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) &% EE#EZF| (A RE)
(Restated) (K5 E7) NATER NATER NATER 0.471 0.521
Note: The adjustment of the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the Mi3T : SHEREREREFIFA 2 @R NEFH
basic earnings per share calculation includes 105,126,666 bonus shares issued o ABRRE T ——FATRHARTZ
on 15 June 2012. #TM 105,126,666 [ °
Non-current assets FERENEE 66,268 135,959 359,432 1,440,111 1,697,359
Current assets REEE 482,726 989,836 1,377,596 1,510,053 2,366,323
Non-current liabilities FRBEE N/A AR 60,712 197,072 248,955 577,652
Current liabilities REEE 110,637 226,232 476,856 1,173,010 1,634,118
Net assets EEFE 438,357 838,851 1,063,100 1,528,199 1,851,912
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

In 2012, amid perils surrounding the photovoltaic industry, coupled with
anti-dumping and anti-subsidy probes launched in America and Europe, the
photovoltaic industry reported loss and bankruptcy, thus overshadowing the
entire industry. Against the backdrop of overseas obstacles hindering the
development of photovoltaic manufacturers, the central government launched
a slew of supportive policies to initiate the domestic photovoltaic application
market. With the great twelfth five-year plan for the photovoltaic industry
in place as well as the newly implemented initiatives of free connection of
distributed photovoltaic grid, threats against the Group were turned into
opportunities in the downstream of the integrated application market.

As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s overall business remained a constantly
continued growth. The Group’s turnover recorded a year-on-year growth of
28.7% to RMB 3,097,511,000, while profits attributable to equity holders
amounted to RMB 328,644,000. The Board recommended distributing a
final dividend of HK$ 0.07 per share.

1. CONSTANTLY GROWING BUSINESS

The Group switched its core business to the solar energy related
business, with its percentage up to 51.9% in the overall revenue.
Especially, the solar photovoltaic power generation business came
under the spotlight of the Group. With painstaking teamwork,
the Group cumulatively completed over 150 system projects, in
particular the best historical record reported in the reward application
schemes such as “Solar Energy’s Demo Application in Photovoltaic
Construction” and “Golden Sun Demonstration Projects”, which
consolidated the Group’ leading position in the photovoltaic integration
market. The Group’s solar thermal business also maintained a growing
momentum with regional advantages over certain areas. As a result of
ongoing advancement in the Group’s technologies and optimization
of its products, the Group successfully penetrated into the thermal
application market.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHE

The Group’s traditional business, namely, curtain wall construction
business, continued with a stable growth, particularly significant growth
in the commercial sector. In addition to the Group’s consolidation
of the existent market, the Group continuously maintained its long-
term cooperation with premium clients, and selectively explored some
hotspot areas and new clients.

There is huge room for developing the Group’s new materials business.
However, the Group has yet to accomplish its missions in the long
run in that key equipment and processing techniques in its research
require further upgrade.

INDUSTRIAL SCALE LAYOUT

The Group’s Phase One of a base project focused on research,
development, and export, located in the high-tech development zone
in Zhuhai, duly commenced its operation in May 2012. It focuses on
the processing and manufacture of high-end curtain wall products and
energy conservation products related to system supports.

Hunan Xiangtan Manufacturing Base has gradually established its
management model as modern manufacturing enterprise. In areas of
lean production and cost control, the base made useful attempts, and
explored some new products in the market application.

IMPROVED TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

The Group has been practicing its philosophy of focusing on research
and development and continuing with innovation. In 2012, the Group
improved its scientific research and innovation system, and continued
to garner support from the reward application schemes for technology
achievements. The Group has accumulated 50 authorized patents, and
more than 50 items in compliance with industrial standards prepared
or supervised on the national, provincial, and municipal levels.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHE

Research, development, and innovation provide technical support to
the development of the Group’s core business. Relying on the national
research center for new energy engineering technologies, the Group
established the Singyes distributed energy sub-center. By taking
advantages of the distributed energy application field, the sub-center
will aggressively promote the application of solar photovoltaic and
thermal energy in the construction industry, serving as the application
model of sizable application of distributed energy. During the year,
Hunan Singyes Solar Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
was recognized as “Enterprise Technology Center in Hunan Province”,
making contribution to the Group’s scientific research and innovation
system.

FUTURE DIFFERENTIATION DEVELOPMENT

The Group will continue with technological innovation as its source of
development momentum, and support the continual development of
diversified businesses. Regarding green construction, the Group will
closely follow the footsteps of the green construction rolled out by the
government in a view to promote and apply the solutions for building
of integrated photovoltaic/thermal system in the existent and newly-
constructed buildings. Regarding new energy, the Group will continue
to promote the roof-based photovoltaic power station and large-size
photovoltaic thermal system business. Regarding new materials, the
Group will further improve the quality of its current products, and
explore the promotion of new products.

The Group weathered the adverse industrial environment over the last
year with its stable growth. Such result benefited from the Group’s
full concentration on its fields, its technological advancement, and
its strong sense of responsibilities for its clients. In future, on top of
continuous effort taken to capture the opportunities in the market,
the Group will capitalize on governmental policies, maintain good
relationship with its clients, and sharpen its core competitive edges. In
addition, the Group will utilize its professional technologies to promote
the social environmental protection, and thank the shareholders for
their support with outstanding returns.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the Listing Date up to the date
of this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN Jilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Li Huizhong and Mr. Cao Zhirong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15to 17.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.
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The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 7 board meetings. The
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attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general EREEEEESe R MRFAFASNE
meeting are set out below: REFNIAT
Board Meetings

Attendance

HEER

Name of Directors Annual General Meeting Board Meeting
EENE BRAEXE EXggs
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. LIU Hongwei BT E /1 7/7
Mr. SUN Jinli b v 0/1 7/7
Mr. XIE Wen # XA 0/1 77
Non-executive Directors FERITES
Mr. LI Huizhong FEREE 0/1 717
Mr. CAO Zhirong BREREE 0/1 717
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BILFEHITES
Dr. WANG Ching T RiEt 11 717
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SIKE A 11 717
Mr. CHENG Jinshu e il 01 717
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SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Revised CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had
participated in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training ARBZ ARMERTESHESI 2588k
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the RER  SESFHFBEIIZEREINGOT
Year is tabulated as follows:—

Training Records e ek

Name Type of trainings Training matters

i 2 |l EAEE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FsE1) (FFEE2)

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BlA s (/%) a, b i, i, il iv

Mr. SUN Jinli FegksE a, b i, i, i, iv

Mr. XIE Wen BOSURE a,b i, i, i, iv

Non-Executive Directors EBITES

Mr. LI Huizhong FTEgREE a,b i i, i, iv

Mr. CAO Zhirong R E a, b i, i, i, iv

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BILFEITES

Mr. WANG Ching T RiEL a,b i, i, fii, iv

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKEE S E a, b i, i, il iv

Mr. CHENG Jinshu e e a,b i, i, i, iv

Note 1: FiEEL

a attending seminar or training session a R g EIIg®

b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b EBREMEHARELE ¥B8R -ES

development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. HBSNEEsS -

Note 2: MEE2

i corporate governance i TEER

ii regulatory compliance ii SEIREST

iii finance iii B

iv management and operation iv BEENEE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company'’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders of the Company are taken
into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has received
the annual confirmation signed by each independent non-executive Director
to acknowledge their respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the
Board is of the view that each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2012, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing
13 January 2012.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Li Huizhong, the non-executive Directors of the

Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 1 July 2011, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years from 19 December 2011.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

ARABNAEBLIFMTESHEFEMME
AR T AR RROF ML ADRTE © IR
WERH - AEE KRB o

EEREREE 2 BERMERAE
&

ARREREEFA e MY AR THRE
E=NEABEBEEE ZETRRZE - R
T WEHARREZREHRBERD
AR -

ZiE - EEREREE

ARABESRITEECBARR G LRIEEL
FHE T —F—A+=ZHRETA=F-

ARRIFPTERESREERFTERLEE
BEARNBRTLREEHK - EHORIR—F—=
FAA—BR-Z—FEtA—RE /Y=
o

BEFPTEFNERR T ——F T4
THhER  RE=%F-

MBEEARBARANANEDE=F&H/E

FRIR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

=

(= -’FEI:

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2012 and for the year ended 31 December
2012, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee’s meetings:

RATIESF EMHRREI21 E3.231KK~FA
ECIKMBRT  REEEHR _TT/\F+=
ATHBBBNRERKNIEZEES - BiX
ZEENEIEREAEELAEEMNIEHREA
BERASERRT  BHASEMNIEER
IAREEEBIINEZEMNEE - BREES
HEBBUIFNTEE(ANEREL - HokE
TERREB L) ER  BREEENIE
BHKERE - BRZESDERNAEEEE
—E-FEXA=ZTHLEANEANREE-Z
—ZF+Z A=+ ALFENREIER
= AEEENGHRAIRERLR—ENE

=+t—RLEFE  BX

TREJIBEZZBERBHFERNBEN

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITEZEET
BEE: EEARE -
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) GKEE (E/E) 2/2
WANG Ching T = 2/2
CHENG Jinshu e 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cheng
Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Jinshu.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012:
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No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITHFMEEE
BE: BEMRE :
CHENG Jinshu (Chairman) BelrE (FE) 11
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SIS E 1/1
WANG Ching * RiEL 1/1
LIU Hongwei Blars et 11

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen, Mr. Wang
Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting to consider the nomination of Mr. Li Huizhong as a Non-executive
Director. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012:
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No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BITREEET
EE: BERE :
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BIATHE (F/) 11
XIE Wen @ 1/1
WANG Ching F = 11
YICK Wing Fat, Simon S EE 1/1
CHENG Jinshu R 11

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders of the Company, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fee paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services amounted to approximately RMB5,453,000 and approximately
HK$72,000 respectively. There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

Internal control

The Group appointed BDO Financial Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2012. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, and,
in particular, considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and the training programmes and budget. The Board will conduct periodic
review on the progress of the improvement and endeavor to enhance the
internal control measures of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, which were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 67 to 68.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications with
shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders and investors informed of
its business performance and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely
disclosure policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company also publishes
all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.

AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the light of
corporate governance best practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Revised CG Code which is effective
from 1 April 2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
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by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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(c)  Engquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance
matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the CG Code and the Revised CG Code;
and

(ii)  review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMEET

SOCIAL CARING

Since its inception, the Group has been committed to becoming a green
enterprise model leveraging its advantages and characteristics in the
development of renewable energy business, especially in the field of building
integrated photovoltaic/thermal system and intelligent microgrid. The Group
also hopes that the advantage of solar energy as a clean energy can be widely
propagated in the society. We have embraced our corporate philosophy of
“Giving back to the society” and actively participated in solar energy related
social responsibility projects, to promote low-carbon life and harmonious
concepts, when we develop our businesses.

The Group also actively participated in the social welfare activities using
solar energy technology to support remote areas. In early June this year, the
Group donated solar power water heating systems to Tibetan in Daofu County,
Ganzi Prefecture, northwest of Sichuan Province. Due to the remoteness,
conventional energy and power is difficult to reach, the living standards of
local residents are generally low. The solar power water heating systems
donated by the Group, can meet the local residents’ needs for hot water. In
consideration of local residents’ contact with the outside world is less and
the installation and the use of solar energy are inconvenient, the Group
chose the pilot site in advance, and provided over 10 days of training on
how to install and operate the systems to the users by a team of professional
technical personnel. All these helped to solve the follow-up application and
maintenance problems about the solar power water heating systems.

In addition, the solar energy electricity generation system aided by the
Group for Gongchengwufu Elderly Home in Yushu, Qinghai completed and
commenced to generate electricity in the same month. The off-grid power
station can meet the needs of nearly 90 people living in the elderly home for
electricity. Gongchengwufu Elderly Home was built by tents which were used
to adopt elderly personswho have lost their families and income post-disaster.
The adverse environment, which had no electricity and water, still posed
challenges to them, even though they stayed under shelters. According to the
actual demand for electricity and the local natural environment, the Group
built the stable and sustainable solar energy electricity supply system in the
shortest time to bring light to the elderly. Building the solar power station for
the elderly home is one of the many charitable activities of the Group for the
disaster-stricken areas.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMESET

In order to promote social responsibility activities within the Group in a
systematic manner and encourage all staff to return to the society, the
Company will study the feasibility of setting up a “social responsibility
committee” internally, which will carry out and monitor relevant works, and
report the progress and results to the Board regularly.

In December 2012, a photovoltaic power system donated by Singyes Solar to
AEHE—HE (Wulian No. One Middle School*, hereinafter referred to as
the “School”) in Shandong Province was constructed, and was successfully
connected to the grids for power generation. The photovoltaic power station
built atop the administration building of the School has an installed capacity
of 44 kilowatts, annually generating green power of approximately 48,000
degrees. Such output suffices the daily electricity consumption in the
administration building. To maintain the smooth operation of the photovoltaic
power system and timely monitor the operational status and environmental
data, Singyes Solar also supplemented the project with a communication and
surveillance system that will inspect and tackle malfunctions and potential
problems arising from the operational functions of the entire power generation
system on a fast and timely basis.

Wulian County, located in the southwest wing of Shandong Peninsula, serves
as a national model for the picturesque ecological environment. With the
photovoltaic system in place, it helps to save 16.9 tons of standardized coals
every year. In other words, it helps to reduce the emission amount of 46.8
tons of CO,, 554 kilograms of SO,, and 202 kilograms of Nitrogen oxides.
According to the estimation of the local electricity pricing, the School will
directly save RMB 50,000 of electricity fees each year. To recognize and
honor the clean power generated by the photovoltaic system for the School,
Singyes Solar is awarded with the title of “Caring Enterprise”.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMEET

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL ASSESSMENT

The Company has developed its Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
report that identifies and assesses environmental and social impacts and
issues, both adverse and beneficial, associated with the construction and
operation of its factory and the impacts were disclosed to the community
through public consultation. According to the approved EIA, there are no
sensitive acceptors and heritage sites within in the sites and potential impact

zone.

The effects of mitigation measures and facilities proposed in EIA report were
examined by local Environmental Protection Monitoring Station during the
year. The environmental acceptance report showed that the mitigations were
effective and pollutant emissions were within line with the requirements of
relevant regulations and standards. Pollutants discharge permit was issued to
Singyes by local Environmental Protection Bureau.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMESET

LABOUR AND WORKING CONDITIONS

The Group is heavy emphasis on its employees’ development and for
the Group’s advancement. The Group organises different internal and
external training programmes every year with the objective of strengthening
the techniques, mentality, communication and management skills of its
employees.

The Group’s human resources policies in terms of recruitment, leave, medical
and personal accident, resignation, dismissal and termination. Every member
of staff has an employment contract in compliance with the requirements in
Mainland China or Hong Kong.

STAFF INDUCTION

The Group proactively prepares its employees with good personal
development. The Group’s external learning and internal training activities
will be organized and arranged yearly in order to better its employees’
comprehensive abilities. In 2012, the Group organized a variety of
professional training programs that establishes a verification system to
accredit professional titles to technical staff. In addition, the Group in
collaboration with Hefei University of Technology rolled out a part-time
postgraduate course, in which currently 18 technical staff attend. The Group
also establishes good collaborative relationship with Jilin University, Beijing
Jiaotong University, and Tongji University, which provides more further
learning opportunities for its employees.

In March 2012, the Group organized marketing seminars for its marketing
staff. In seminars, the external lecturers and external advisors elaborated
details in relation to areas such as marketing practice and marketing
strategies, and introduced case studies for analysis. These helped the
marketing staff in question to improve their marketing expertise.

In June 2012, the Group organized an energy training course, aiming
at training up more professional talents through internal training. During
27 sessions of the course, a number of professional technical lecturers
elaborated many areas of thermal technologies, including knowledge in
relation to the application of solar energy, supervision and management
during the work process, and the design of integrated photovoltaic thermal
system.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMEET

UNIVERSITY-INDUSTRY COLLABORATION

The Group stresses collaboration with universities in a view to provide
students with internship opportunities and experience in industries related to
solar energy application development while successfully organizing exchange
of achievements to back up theories of application technologies.

In February 2012, the Group started to develop an internship base in
collaboration with BNU-HKBU United International College (hereinafter
referred to as “UIC"). The Group provides students from UIC with internship
positions, and welcomes students from UIC to participate in “themed
programs” and vacation internship programs. Interactive exchanges
from both sides boost the horizontal collaboration on scientific research
projects through integrating the university-industry talent advantages with
technological advantages.

In August 2012, Bahgesehir University approached the Group about
university-industry collaboration programs. Both sides had extensive
exchanges in relation to the direction guiding the future collaboration, with
their preliminary agreement to international student internship programs,
cooperative international technology programs through industry-university
research, project investments, and business expansion to overseas markets.

CULTURAL CONSTRUCTION

By implementing its cultural philosophy of “Developing a harmonious Singyes
with joint efforts”, the Group aggressively maintains an equal, open, and
harmonious working environment. In such environment, the enthusiastic
employees work with a studious and progressive attitude. The Group also
provides full support to its employee association in many aspects. Over years,
the Group has long established its unique corporate culture.

The “Fitness and Happiness” Club, which covers more than ten programs,
helps employees to work out and meditate. The number of such club
members totals over 400. The talented art troupe keeps demonstrating their
strong literary and artistic skills in the Group’s internal and external events.
Events, including annual sports game to welcome new members, the mid-
autumn evening, and the Chinese New Year Eve party, encourage the Group’s
employees to participate, and enrich their personal life.

In addition, the Group established a caring fund that helps its difficult
employees to overcome life difficulties.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEMESET

RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Total consumptions of electricity in 2012 was 16,652,000kWh. Which implies
a total CO, emission of approximately 13,000 tones and SO, emission of 163
tones. As a responsible company, the Group is taking every measures to
reduce the negative impact to the environment. We have installed a 20.8MW
roof-top solar power generation system, under full operation, it can generate
approximately 24,000,000kWh of electricity and it helps to save around 9,750
tones of coal usages, which implies a reduction of 23,750 tones of CO, and
725 tones of SO, emission.

Regarding energy conservation, the Group has actively implemented an
accountability system. The management staff has implemented sufficient
procedures to remind employees of the need for switching off lights and
power sources after work and adopting sensor faucets in some of the office
areas. The Company also employs dedicated support staff to patrol the
company regularly every night in order to make sure that all power sources
are switched off after work.

The Group also encourage electricity communication in order to save paper
usage. The Group has developed its own OA system for company internal
news announcement and staff communication.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION

By December 2012, the Group constructed over 150 domestic and overseas
photovoltaic projects with an accumulative power output exceeding 200 MW
and an annual electricity output of approximately 21,756 degrees. These
projects help save 56,565,600 liters of fuels or 78,321,600 kilograms of
standard coals. In other words, it means that the emission of CO,, SO,, and
nitrogen oxides will be cut by 216,907,320 kilograms, 2,567,208 kilograms,
935,508 kilograms, respectively. Meanwhile, 59,176,320 kilograms of dust
will be reduced during the thermal power generation, thus saving about
870,240,000 liters of purified water.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of conventional curtain walls and Building Integrated Photovoltaic System
(“BIPV") systems; as well as manufacture and sale of renewable energy
goods. Our BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic
technology into the architectural design of buildings and structures and
(i) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the
electricity generated from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of
a building and the electricity generated from sun power will be consumed
simultaneously. No extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we
also engage in the production and sale of renewable energy goods, including
smart grid system and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a
new business called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New material”
business for the development of high-end curtain wall in future. Leveraging
on our track record and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we
will further strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect
of BIPV systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we also
provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall
materials. Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business.
In the long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a
focus on renewable energy business.

FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIES
Opening of new Zhuhai production base

In May 2011, we acquired a land parcel in Zhuhai with 125,639 square
meter for a new production centre.

The first phase of this production base has just commenced operation in
second quarter in 2012. Our new Zhuhai production centre is mainly focus
on engineering works and material fabrication for our solar and curtain wall
businesses in the domestic and the overseas market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

il

B W

Stabe growth in conventional curtain wall business

In 2012, we involved in 3 railway related projects (2011:10). After the
high-speed train accident occurred in early 2011, the construction plan of
the high speed railway system were temporary be suspended and under
evaluation to enhance the overall safety and reliability. As a results, relatively
less revenue from railway projects were noted in 2012. In view of our proven
track record and the established business network, we believe that the
railway revenue could rebound when the construction of the high-speed train
network inside Mainland China resume. Despite the negative impact from
the drop in revenue from railway projects, we still recorded a stable growth
in conventional curtain wall business because of the strong demand from
commercial sector.

Strengthening our BIPV business

We intend to further strengthen our solar business by undertaking more BIPV
projects. The Mainland China government continues to give support to solar
application through various policies. Under the Twelfth-Five- Year Plan, the
Mainland China government target to install about 21GW of solar system
inside Mainland China by year 2015. With the combination of our proven
track record, our expertise, our technical know-how and our experience we
were able to get stable market share in the solar application and installation
market since 2009. We have strategically positioned us as a high end solar
system integrator and engineer in Mainland China and we believe that we
could maintain a strong business growth in the coming years.

We also planned to devote more research efforts in the development and
design of new renewable energy goods in order to capture the growth in
market demand. Moreover, through the strategic cooperation with a number
of solar panel manufacturers, we aim to tap into their Mainland China and
overseas customer base and distribution network to secure business for our
BIPV systems and renewable energy goods and to seek overseas business
opportunities.

During the year, we have achieved a very satisfactory result in our BIPV
business. We involved in 38 BIPV projects and revenue from BIPV grew by
29.8% and it accounted for approximately 34.6% of our total revenue (2011:
34.2%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

We have secured 269MW of projects under 2012 second batch 2012 Golden
Sun and 40MW under the 2013 Solar Roof Top Program in December
2012 and January 2013 respectively. And in May 2012, we have secured
approximately 150MW of projects under the first batch 2012 Golden Sun
program and approximately 16MW under the Solar Roof Top program.

Development of renewable energy goods and new materials

We have launched a variety kind of renewable energy goods in recent years,
including solar thermal system, heat pumb and New material business. The
increase in importance in environmental protection helps to stimulate the
sale of our renewable energy goods.

Revenue from renewable and New material business increased from
RMB338.2 million in 2011 to RMB537.3 million in 2012.

During the year, we have recorded a substantial growth in renewable energy
goods business. Apart from various government support programs, the
increase in demand also because of the continue drop in raw material prices
which make investment return in solar application more attractive than
before. The commercial and industrial sector starts to recognise the attractive
return and hence demand increased significantly.

We started our solar thermal and solar heat pump business in year 2010.
In 2012, sale of solar thermal system and solar heat pump continue to
contribute a significant percentage in our solar goods business.

We commenced our New material business in 2011, revenue grew by
55.8% in current year. New material is still under prototype stage and hence
the profit margin is still relatively low, but this could help us to explore new
opportunity to develop green building business in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Overseas business opportunities

Revenue outside Mainland China accounted for approximately 4.7% of our
total revenue in 2012. Overseas revenue mainly is came from some sizable
government projects in Macau, with revenue over RMB130 million. We are
also in the process of submitting tenders in Macau, Hong Kong and other
South East Asian countries.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREEET AREEHET

Conventional curtain walls BHEA
— Public work — QTR 381.9 403.5
— Commercial and industrial buildings — IitEF 748.7 436.8
— High-end residential buildings — BiEEEE 92.2 140.9
1,222.8 981.2

BIPV HIREE

— Public work — RHTE 320.0 4583
— Commercial and industrial buildings — ITPtEF 752.0 367.7
1,072.0 826.0
Total Construction Contracts BEA R 2,294.8 1,807.2

Sale of goods HEEm
— Curtain wall materials — BiEME 257.8 255.7
— Renewable energy goods — AIBAREREM 517.2 325.3
— New material business — MR E 20.1 129
Total sale of goods HEEmBET 795.1 593.9
Sale of electricity BHHE 4.5 2.0
Rendering of design and other services R R H M ARTE 3.1 3.1
Total revenue FEN N 3,097.5 2,406.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EFRERE
2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——5F
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT AREBHET

Construction contracts BEAR
— Conventional curtain walls — BHRERE 187.7 15.4 1476 15.0
—BIPV — FREE -8B 380.6 35.5 278.6 33.7
568.3 24.8 426.2 23.6

Sale of goods EmigE
— Curtain wall materials — B 44.9 17.4 475 18.6
— Renewable energy goods — A AAREIRE M 133.8 25.9 101.2 31.1
— New materials — FME 1.1 5.5 3.7 28.7
179.8 22.6 152.4 25.7
Sale of electricity BHHEE - - 0.4 20.0
Rendering of design and other services TR AT R E M ARTE 1.1 35.5 1.6 51.6
Overall gross profit margin HEF = 749.2 24.2 580.6 24.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

BIPV business KRBE—BILER
Income YWas
2012 2011
RMB million RMB million
k- Bk —T——%F

ARBERT ARBBEET

BIPV revenue as reported above n_E RS M YRR E B LA 1,072.0 826.0
A 3.1MW project recorded in other income ~ R E MK IBRAI 3.1 K FIEE - 20.0
Total BIPV related income SREE— BRI A 5 1,072.0 846.0
Gross profit EH

BIPV profit as reported above WA E RS B R R — R R T 380.6 2786
A 3.1MW project recorded in other income ~ FAHE MU z5I8RA) 3.1 JKFLIE B - 20.0
Total BIPV related gross profit HIREE—BBLIBEBEFR 8% 380.6 298.6
Margin EFFE 35.5% 35.3%

The Group’s revenue increased by RMB691.3 million or 28.7%, from NEEBHKAEE AR 691,300,000

RMB2,406.2 million in 2011 to RMB3,097.5 million in 2012. Gross profit of TTH287% B T ——FHARE
the Group increased by RMB168.6 million or 29.0%, from RMB580.6 million 2,406,200000 T E T —Z—FHARE
in 2011 to RMB749.2 million in 2012. 3,097,500,0007C » A< 5 @ E F g &k A R

168,600,000 7£3¢29.0% * BT ——FH A
R# 580,600,000 T2 — T~ —FHARK
749,200,000 7T °

1) The Group’s conventional curtain wall business record a stable growth 1) AEENEREBES LHEERHE

of RMB241.6 million or 24.6%, from RMB981.2 million in 2011 to MEEEE SSBTEE BRA
RMB1,222.8 million in 2012, especially in commercial sector. We put R ¥ 241,600,00070824.6% * B ==&
more focus on second tier cities during the year. The demand for new ——F M AR 981,200,000 L E —
commercial buildings still high because of the increasing need for T ——F M AR 1,222,.800,0007T °
modernization. RAEE - AREGEHET AW H

MER - ARRARMEBRARER - 8
HMEFERFTOFERIDARSIE -
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Gross profit from conventional curtain walls increased from RMB147.6
million to RMB187.7 million. Gross profit margin remains stable at
15.4% in 2012 (2011: 15.0%).

We have achieved a quite a good growth in our BIPV business in 2012.
Revenue from BIPV increased by RMB246.0 million or 29.8%, from
RMB826.0 million in 2011 to RMB1,072.0 million in 2012.

BIPV revenue grew significantly in commercial sectors. BIPV revenue
from commercial sector increased by RMB384.3 million or 104.5%.
The rapid increase in commercial demand was because of the drop in
system cost and the attractive investment return. In the past few years,
the Mainland China government launched a number of policies to
simulate the solar application and our BIPV business recorded a very
high growth rate. We believe that the Mainland China government will
continue to support downstream solar application and solar application
will continue to be the main revenue driver of the Group.

Gross profit for BIPV business increased by RMB102 million 36.6%.

Sales of goods increased by 33.9%, from RMB593.9 million in
2011 to RMB795.1 million in 2012. Sale of goods comprises sale of
conventional materials; sale of renewable energy goods and sale of
New materials.

Sale of conventional materials increased slightly by RMB2.1 million or
0.8%. Gross profit margin in 2012 was 17.4% (2011: 18.6%).

2)

3)

BEREERBREFENENHARSE
147,600,000 L3 %= A R % 187,700,000
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Sale of renewable energy goods increased by RMB191.9 million
or 59.0%. Sale of renewable energy goods comprises sale of BIPV
materials, sale of solar thermal collectors and heat pump and other
solar related products. Gross margin dropped to 25.9% (2011: 31.1%).

4) In 2011, we also started New material business. We use an electricity-
conductive material called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO") and it will become
transparent when electricity is connected. Our New material business
included ITO film and ITO embedded glass, while the transparency
of ITO embedded glass is adjustable by switching the power. We
believe that the introduction of New material could help us to create
opportunity on high-end curtain wall and to improve profit margin. New

material revenue increased by RMB7.2 million or 55.8%.

5)  Our first smart-grid demonstration project in Dong-Ao Island
commenced operation in 2010. Sale of electricity income during the
year was RMB4.5 million. This is a very good show case project to
draw public’s interest on how a smart-grid network operate and to
show them the benefits of smart-grid. We believe that the smartgrid
technology will bring us new business opportunities in foreseeable

future.
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Revenue and profit contribution from different business sectors: KRB R R EEEE A R F
Revenue split WAt
2012 2011
—'——% —E——F
RMB million %  RMB million %
AREEET % AREBHET %
Conventional business EFBA 1,483.7 47.9 1,240.0 51.1
Renewable energy business * Al AR 1,593.7 51.5 1,173.3* 48.4
New material business IR RS 20.1 0.6 129 0.5
100 100
Profit split & FIFF 57
2012 2011
—B-CF —F——%
RMB million %  RMB million %
AREEET % ARBEET %
Conventional business BEHEB 233.7 31.2 196.7 32.8
Renewable energy business * Al AR 514.4 68.6 400.2* 66.6
New material business MRS 1.1 0.2 3.7 0.6
100 100
* The 2011 figures included a RMB20 million recorded under other income. * R —FHBEREREMRATIERHA

The Group’s conventional business grew by about 19.7% and renewable
energy business grew by 35.8%.Renewable energy business, together with
new material business, accounted for about 52% of the group’s total revenue
(2011: 48.9%). In 2012, renewable energy business and new material
business accounted for about 68.8% of the group’s gross profit (2011:
67.2%).

20,000,000 7T ©

AEERNBERERIERL19.7% KAl B4 4L
IRETFIE R 35.8% o AlHARLRER - ERH
MR AME R EB B AR 52% (=T ——
F:489%) c RZT— 5 n]BERIRE
R SR LB EF 68.8% (=F
——4F 1 67.2%) °
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented government subsidy and interest
income from banks.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB13.3 million or 27.7%.
The increase in selling and distribution expense was mainly caused by the
increase in staff costs, and other business related expenses. The increase
in staff costs was because of the increase in number of selling staffs and
increase in staff incentive. The levels of changes in other items were
consistent with our business growth.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses increased by RMB36.0 million or 22.4%. The
increase in administrative expenses was again mainly driven by the increase

in staff costs, depreciation, research expense and other business related
EXPenses.

Other expenses

Other expenses is stable comparing with 2011.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB52.8 million. Total bank loans
amounted to RMB1,206.4 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 665.6
million). The increase in loans raised and the use of discounted bills inside
Mainland China drove up the interest expense.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense included RMB73.5 million of taxation charge and

RMB19.7 million of deferred tax charge. Taxation charged increased by
RMB13.1 million comparing with 2011.
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Provision for corporate tax dropped from RMB79.4 million in 2011 to
RMB73.5 million in 2012. The decease is because some over provision of tax
expenses in previous years reversed back in 2012.

Deferred tax included RMB19.7 million (2011: RMB17.9 million) of deferred
tax charges, it mainly represented provision for dividend withholding tax
based on 5% of net profit on our operating subsidiaries located inside
Mainland China.

In 2011, the Group received RMB134.9 million of government subsidy
on the roof top solar farm on top of our new production base in Hunan.
Such government subsidy will initially be recognized as deferred income
as at 31 December 2011, RMB20.0 million was released as income due to
the completion of a 3.1MW roof top solar farm. The tax implication of the
remaining balance of RMB114.9 represented a RMB17.2 million of deferred
tax assets. The net deferred tax impact was a deferred tax charge of RMBO.7
million.

Strong current ratio

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.45 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: 1.3).

Trade and bills receivables/trade and bills payables turnover
days

CEMESHBEER T ——FNARE
79,400,000t FTHE-_ZE——FHNARE
73,500,0007C © THERHERBAFEHRES
o BEREN T — &M -

EIER & A R# 19,700,000 (=& ——
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AR 114,900,000 T W RIS 5 ZENEER &
EARM17,200,0007C ° EEFH B FETE
EIRIEF S A RHE 700,000 7T °

2k,
Be

SEERREILL %

TE L (IR A ER AR BB 8 %)
R-B——F+-A=+—HAK145(-F
——%:13)-

FEWEE B IA R BRI FEHEE B3k
HREARREASER

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011

NR-T—=% RZE——%F

+ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H”

Days Days

Turnover days AR B =
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Trade and bills receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables, net
of impairment, for the year divided by the revenue during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year. Trade and bills receivables
turnover days at 31 December 2012 was 132 days. Trade and bills payables
turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of
sales during the year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December
2012 was 62 days, an improvement is noted when comparing with 2011.
The Group will continue to put effort to improve the trade and bills receivable
turnover days for better operating cash flow.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included the cashflow generated from
operating activities and newly raised bank loans. At 31 December 2012, the
Group had approximately RMB698.1 million of cash and cash equivalents
and approximately RMB1,206.4 million of bank loans. The Group will
continuously manage its cash outflow closely and cautiously in the coming
years and dedicate to maintain a sound financial position and improve the
equity return to its shareholders.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented
by consolidated net borrowings (total bank loans minus cash and cash
equivalents) to total equity at 31 December 2012 was 27.5% (2011: 22.9%).

With the continuous positive cash inflow generated from its operations
and its existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained
from its bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

FEUE 5 7038 I e M R 45 [E 88 B TR IR AF Mg
B 5 I8 R M R IE R F ) R F ARG T
HEIRRE  RAFABA - BEUFAA
HErE - ENE 58 RERERFEEERR
T——F+-A=+—BA1328 - ENES
FIE R EWEIREE R DIRBEFAENE SR
HRENEENFOREREHROHTHEE B
INERNNEXRTE - BB SHHIBRENE
BRABMAN T ——F+-_A=+—HA62
B 8T ——&EL - BES50EREN
RS ABNE - AEEGEET NN
ZHEWZESHEREREERAESEUERE

EEERET o

RBEERUBER

AEBESHNEIERRALEEBHBES
MERFERITER - RZTE—ZF+=
A=+—8 AEEEHRLBASEFEDLD
AR #698,100,0007T RIRITERHARE
1,206,400,000 7T © 7N 5 B E R SR B4 15 2 48
ZELEFENERRSNE - #RHERMBERK
TR IR AR A AR AN B3R, -

REERREE R B EER B RRFNERK
U REBERE - EEABHLERIENS
E——F+ A=+ R ARGREERFE
(RTBERBBERRC KRS SEY) HEx
BER275% (ZF——1F 1 22.9%) °

OB ARG SR EREIRSRE MR
BB ERRRABTHREEE - AEE
ER RS REN AR RSEELBE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

v il

B W

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately RMB335.9 million and it was mainly used in
the construction of factory premises of a new production base in Zhuhai
and Hunan. Capital expenditures in 2011 was RMB1,079.3 million and was
mainly comprise additions in plant and machinery and factory premises in
Hunan new production base, as well as additions of new land use rights and
the construction in progress for a new production centre in Zhuhai.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank loans of RMB1,206.4 million
with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 3.75% for loans in Hong Kong, and ranging
from 5.00%-7.87% for loans inside Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB2,258.6 million. We utilised RMB1,206.7 million as bank loans and
RMB520.4 million were utilised as trade financing activities (including letter
of credits, bills, performance bond etc). The remaining banking facilities
RMB531.5 million were limit for arranging trade financing.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
impact on the Group’s equity.

TEMRANETRETEROTEED
HBSHRETROBRT - HARERES
HIREOB BRI (BN S EE R B B0 A
R EEED) EBEHH - ARERRS LR

=7, 3| | By 4BB
SEIFE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit

in foreign before tax

currency rate Ba¥E Al

Ex=LtH EaFE

(&) (iB2)

% RMB’000

% AREFTTT

2012 —ECF

If RMB weakens against HK$ WMARE S ETERE 5 (2,976)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ AR B TTHE (5) 2,976
If RMB weakens against US$ MARMHETRE 5 182
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHLETIE (5) (182)
If RMB weakens against Euro AR H BTz E 5 3
If RMB strengthens against Euro AR EBTAE (5) 3)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China, which management believes are of
high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. Moreover, as the Group’s exposure spreads over a diversified
portfolio of customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.07 per
share (2011: HK$0.04 per share). The Company is in rapid expandsion
stage, the actual dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual
performance of the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

Closure of register of members

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 24 May 2013 to
Thursday, 28 May 2013, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26/F Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 23 May 2013.
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The Company’s register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 4 June
2013 to Wednesday, 5 June 2013 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong,
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 June 2013.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Wednesday, 10 July 2013.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had about 2,100 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses increased to approximately RMB119.7
million in 2012 from approximately RMB99.9 million in 2011, which
represented an increase of 19.8%. This is because the Group additionally
recruited more than 300 staffs during the years to meet with the rapid
business growth. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly
every year. Apart from provident fund scheme (according to the provisions
of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the
state-managed retirement pension scheme (for Mainland China employees)
and medical insurance, discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRESNBHEENER

Name Age Position 21 i 52

Liu Hongwei 49 Chairman and executive Director 20414 495% FREMAITES
Sun Jinli 49 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director FeE 49 BIEREHITES
Xie Wen 47 Executive Director #OX o ATBR HITES

Li Huizhong 63 Non-executive Director Te®R 635 EHITESE

Cao Zhirong 39 Non-executive Director BEE  39% EMITES

Wang Ching 58 Independent non-executive Director F R 58 BIEBITEE
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 55 Independent non-executive Director Sx¥  B5p% BN IERITES
Cheng Jinshu 60 Independent non-executive Director Bef 605 BIERITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 49, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as
well as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than twelve
years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of
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Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’'s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Sun Jinli aged 49, is our Deputy Chairman and an executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for formulating the
overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than
nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing Electronics
Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Sun was the
manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. From
August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project manager of Zhuhai
Singyes, responsible for the development and management of business
projects. From January 2001 to October 2007, Mr. Sun was the deputy
general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for planning the overall sales
and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes and our Group. Since March 2005,
Mr. Sun has been an executive Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun
has also been working as the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy.
In December 1994, Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong
Province Zhuhai Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 47, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Huizhong, aged 63, was appointed as non-executive director of our
Company on 1 July 2011. Prior to this appointment, he was a vice general
manager of Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), a subsidiary of the Company and retired from his position
in Zhuhai Singyes in year 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Heilongjiang Radio and Television University in July 1986.
Prior to joining the Group in year 2000, Mr. Li was the general manager of the
Zhuhai office of Daging Petroleum Administrative Bureau.

Cao Zhirong aged 39, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in
business administration from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance
from Columbia University in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 55, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
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Cheng lJinshu, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng is the professor
director of Science and Technology Division and director of the Green
Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research Institute of Ministry
of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He was the vice-dean
of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material College and vice-
director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng graduated from
the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September 1976. Mr. Cheng has 34
years’ education and academic research experience relating to construction
materials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 49, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has approximately
13 years of experience in the glass manufacturing sector and 18 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our Group
as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the quality testing
department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Xiong
also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing
enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a senior engineer in respect
of construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July 1986. In December
2007, Mr. Xiong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Zhuo Jianming, aged 52, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 13 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 47, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
11 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 10
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its
daily operation.

Wang Zhijun, aged 37, is the chief financial officer of our Company since
May 2008. He has 11 years of experience in financial accounting. He joined
Zhuhai Singyes as a financial accountant in September 1998 immediately
after he graduated from Qingdao University. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Wang
acted as the chief accountant of the accounting department of Zhuhai
Singyes and became the financial manager of Zhuhai Singyes in June 2006.
Mr. Wang qualified as a registered assistant accountant in the PRC in August
1999.
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Zhang Chao, aged 40, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 11 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 10 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.

Luo Duo, aged 34, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 11 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.
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Liang Binggiang, aged 35, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 12 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 35, was appointed as the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of our Company in June 2008. He
is responsible for financial reporting and general investor affairs of our
Company. He has approximately 14 years of experience in financial
accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately seven years of working
experience with international audit firms and was mainly responsible for
financial auditing, internal control reporting and compliance advisory. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

RS - 3558 AWEEERILEIE B8
BRGNS - FRERIRESHEES 12
FiEp - HR_TT-FMOAMARERET
BEHRD e RAAEBZTTMFLAEZEZTEN
FLAEERERELRARPEEBRT L
B RZEETFNAETT_F=AR%
IR BEEER AT IE - R-EENEN
R BEZEAREEE N BEEBLE - B
ZETNFNA - BREZEAFEENEIRIE
IR o REER T —F+ARRILTAS
BREHFANBEIRM RS F—H 2
FHERELE T A BT ET R AR TIZA -
RZTTTF L ARFEEREHTER SN
BRTRETRELTEM -

RER B R_ETN\FAARZER
ARRMHEHRE - BERGRERARMWE ©
HEEARRMBERRE—REEEEH - ®
RUBEATEREENIAFER - RELER
ERGHAGER M ARGENARE
REE - RIMAAREER - KEALH7FEE
BRI IELR  TE2RAEMBEZ A
BT E R ARAEN c BN _TT—F8F
REBETIRE  HHESHERESLE -

ATHE

REBEER/RABTRAWE - BRARLLEN
E—TFE  BRHLXRRERAR] —

B e



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEWSEE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and BIPV systems. The BIPV system involves (i) the integration
of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings and
structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engage in the production and sale of renewable
energy guards, including smart grid system, prefabricated solar houses, solar
thermal system and solar street lamp. The Group’s principal operating market
is in Mainland China. The Group also exploring potential markets in the
Middle East Asia, Singapore and Macau.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public or
commercial BIPV or curtain wall projects. In aggregate, the largest and top
five customers contributed approximately 7% and 20% of the Group’s total
revenue in 2012 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminum and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2012, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 13.2% and
35.9% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2012 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries which principally affect the results
as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 69 to 180. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of
HK$ 0.07 per share (2011: RMBO0.04 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 73 of the annual report and in note 32 to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB35,921,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2012, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB7,036,000. An resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for the reduction of
share premium of RMB40,000,000 to the distribution reserve for distribution
of final dividends.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements. During the year, the Company
and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of
the Company. The Company also issued 2,101,099 shares at the subscription
price of HK$3.58 per share on exercise of share options. And 105,126,666
shares were issued on 15 June 2012 pursuant to a Bonus Issue approved by
an annual general meeting of the Company on 25 May 2012.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Huizhong
Mr. Cao Zhirong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Mr. Cao Zhirong and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon are required to
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the
above Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

AFPRGRE

AEEBEDEMBFENEENLREERR
BHRE - MNAFRELIE -

EERESERBEEL

AMBFEREERAREBHIEHESNOT ¢

WITES
eIk e
reRrt
W oXEE

FBITESE
?@E_‘?\?ﬁi
BEREE

BIEHPTES
T =EtL
SIKEFLE
(ERcnpitd

RBARNRZMANER7 15 - BIATHESLE &
TREER GRBEFEENRERERRBFAEG L
AWFRE - LB EEBNEERRBEAX
& LEREE -

oW B R

ARBEZEZRSREEERE Z HMBERT)
RIBEERRBUARTSBE RED T IARE
Rl BERZHMFHIBHNGEA M B HRRME
8 o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEWSEE

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2012 were within the following bands:

REE-T——F+-A=+—HILEFE %

NeRERE(RRES) ZHFMNTRAT
HE

Number of

Senior Management

Bands &iE BREEERE
RMB100,000 to RMB300,000 AFR# 100,000 ;& A R # 300,000 7T 2
RMB300,001 to RMB600,000 AR# 300,001 7t & A RE 600,000 7T

RMB600,001 to RMB900,000 AR# 600,001 7tE AR # 900,000 7T 2
Total: AF 10

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of
the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which
is renewable automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment
unless terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a term of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other
party not less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 26,126,000 Shares,
representing 4.03% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of
this report. The Company granted 30,816,000 options with exercise price of
HK$3.58 per share on 23 July 2009, 7,200,000 options with exercise price
of HK$2.78 per share on 27 May 2010 and 7,200,000 options with exercise
price of HK$2.68 on 11 October 2011, respectively. Options quantity and
exercise prices were adjusted pursuant to an announcement of the Company
dated 27 July 2012. Please refer to note 31 of the financial statement, for the
year ended 31 December 2012 for details of the options granted.
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the Shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 2,101,999 shares were exercised on HK$3.58 each on
exercise of share options granted on 23 July 2009. Save as disclosed above,
there was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted at
any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Company/name
of associated
corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT HEE Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i EEEE St IR BRiZEE REBRAE 9L
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 242,028,078 37.30%
RIAT 4 E ViN/NE] corporation ! A
SN
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,380,000 0.22%
ZAN/NG| iy dokd rE
Sub-total: Long 243,408,078 37.52%
2 K&
Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.22%
Relit ZAN/NG| g ik rE
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.22%
@ Xk AE RAT] Bt 2 rA
Mr. Li Huizhong Company Beneficial interest 2 Long Nil Nil
XSt ZAN/NG| g ik rE i i
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.04%
T OREE RAT] Bt 2 rA
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.04%
Simon AT B 2 ®E
SRR E
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.04%
R E RAT] B 2 rAE
Notes: BsE

1. These 242,028,078 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1. 242,028,078 % % {7 Fa Strong Eagle Holdings

capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be Ltd. 75 7%& - if1 £ 4L 4 5& 4 % /& Strong Eagle
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO. Holdings Ltd.f& 2K 2 53% @ iRIEFH L EHE
W] - BIAT AR AR ARZERDTHES
A o
2. Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2. ZERTRRAEBERMSANRARRERE -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

FEIRRRRS - HEARS RE
FPHERRER

WZB——F+-RA=+—H BEFHE-
B EXXRBEEIN - AT ALTIOER (WIAR
AEFERTRITHAR) RAR BB KA
Bindh - A CRENREE S R RIIE
3BHRAFEMNELMOERRIER - LIRIE
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KB RRZBRERERAE ERE BRI AR
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Capacity/nature Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding

Shareholder position S of shares FRAERLY
BRER R/7ER R KRBEE Bt
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 242,028,078 37.30%

£R BESHEAA

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Huizhong, as to 53%, 15%,
11%, 8%, 9% and 4% respectively.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2012.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2012.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 37 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other committees
of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” from pages 8 to 22.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR
The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by

Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

VR EE: S

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B M A% AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETEW R
S

i

2012 2011
% e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AREF ARET T

REVENUE 9N 4 3,097,511 2,406,212
Cost of sales SHE A (2,348,361) (1,825,618)
Gross profit E=75 749,150 580,594
Other income and gains E U A R Uz 5 21,135 41,779
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko HR X (61,406) (48,075)
Administrative expenses 1THAX (196,776) (160,755)
Other expenses HAF< (3,216) (5,999)
Finance costs BE R 6 (88,785) (36,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BF wiliEs Al 7 420,102 371,533
Income tax expense P #isz 10 (93,171) (80,025)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR i F 326,931 291,508
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H it 2Elkzs ~ (B518)
Exchange differences on translation of MEFINETSHIE R =5

foreign operations (610) 1,285
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEFEE2EIISLEEE

FOR THE YEAR 326,321 292,793
Profit attributable to: AT AL SRR -

Owners of the Company FiN/NCIE 2PN 11 328,644 290,850

Non-controlling interests TR (1,713) 658

326,931 291,508

Total comprehensive income attributable to: - JA ™ AT REfS 2 E UK -

Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZE DN 328,034 292,135

Non-controlling interests TR (1,713) 658

326,321 292,793

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE FATEEEZRFAA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FEIL SRR

THE COMPANY

Basic HAR 13 RMBO0.521 RMBO0.472

Diluted g 13 RMBO0.521 RMB0.471

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the REEEHENZREF BRI BREW T
financial statements. 125%E -

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
i AR R

2012 2011
—¥F-=-F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BosE AREFx AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 14 1,545,279 1,261,462
Prepaid land lease payments TE A EFRIE 15 92,697 94,644
Intangible assets mVAE 16 3,132 4,565
Payments in advance SELRE e 18 7,863 32,512
Deferred tax assets RIEFL IR E B 28 18,290 17,216
Available-for-sale equity investments A ERAIRE 19 30,098 29,712
Total non-current assets IR EERE 1,697,359 1,440,111
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 20 63,384 63,847
Construction contracts ZEAR 21 48,840 48,025
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 308 & M =R 22 1,281,444 991,551
Prepayments, deposits and ERARE - FJek
other receivables o FEUGRIE 23 59,747 37,152
Pledged deposits IR 24 214,820 53,982
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 24 698,088 315,496
Total current assets MEEELE 2,366,323 1,510,053
CURRENT LIABILITIES ) =R
Trade and bills payables BB SRIERENRE 25 515,365 298,112
Other payables and accruals Eoh FE S FE M R FOE 26 175,259 215,299
Due to directors B EEF0E - 13,385
Interest-bearing bank loans M BSRITE R 27 917,354 569,147
Tax payable FETERIS TR 26,140 77,067
Total current liabilities mE)aEeEE 1,634,118 1,173,010
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 732,205 337,043
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEBERREBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,429,564 1,777,154
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

2012 2011
—E—=F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIaE AREFT ARETFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREERE
Interest-bearing bank loans WERITER 27 289,080 96,413
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE 28 58,497 37,771
Deferred income EIEWA 29 230,075 114,771
Total non-current liabilities JEmBAaERE 577,652 248 955
Net assets BEFE 1,851,912 1,528,199
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners EATIHER ARE(L1ERS
of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 42,606 35,841
Reserves (it 32 1,766,543 1,470,758
Proposed final dividend R AR HARR B 12 35,921 17,045
1,845,070 1,623,644
Non-controlling interests FEiER g 33 6,842 4,555
Total equity AR 1,851,912 1,528,199
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
BaT 4 weiE
Director Director
EFE EFE

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR e



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
I"T * '_><’%:’2“\§j1%

Attributable to owners of the Company

LINS 2PN
Difference
arising from
acquisition
of non-
controlling
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise Share  Exchange interests*  Proposed Non-
[ssued  premium reserve  expansion option ~ fluctuation e final controlling
capital  account® Contributed fund*  fund*  resene’  resene*  Refained  FER  dividend inferests Total

BT Bl surplus Vil 2R BhE ER  pofts  BREE HE Tl FER equiy
R OREER AARR REES  BRS  HE ORE RBEM 2R FERR &t Ba  EafE
(note30)  (note32)  (note32) (note32)  (note32)  (note31) (note 32) (note 33)
() (WiE32)  (WiE32) (M) (MiE32) (3D (x32) (33)
RMBOO0  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBI0OO
NRETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETI ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETI ARETI

At 1 January 2011 W=5——%-3-8 33589 230,036 723 64814 25,093 39,644 2797 6322% - 14727 1043719 19381 1,063,100
Total comprehensive income TEERERGLE

for the year - - - - - - 1285 290850 - - 1B 658 292,793
Issue of shares ki 2269 196,004 - - - - - - - - 1823 - 198213
Redemption of shares Al () (2915) - - - - - - - - 2%]) - (2%1)
Evercise of share options fitEhE %160 - - - - - - - - 180 - 160
Acquistion of non-controling WiEskaTiE

Interests - - - - - - - - 2,100 - 2000 (15484  (13384)
Transfer of share option reserve /16 HR7ER

upon the exercise of BhiEREEY

share options - 628 - - - (628) - - - - - - -
Equity-setled share option s ERRER:

arrangements (note 31) (HisE31) - - - - - 7669 - - - - 7609 - 7669
Share issLe expenses RERT - (418 - - - - - - - - 418 ENUSES)
Transfer from retained profts EBaREER - - - 4613 2307 - - (%0 - - - - -
Transfer to contributed surplus EREARS - (300000 30,000 - - - - - - - - - -
Final 2010 dividend declared BER-E-ZERERE

(note 12) (fsE12) - - 9 - - - - - - (4720 (1473%) - (1473)
Proposed final 2011 dividend HE-T-—ERHERS - - (1704) - - - - - - 10 - - -
At 31 December 2011 K=F——%+-A=1-A 3b841 391,169 13,669 69,427 27,400 46,685 408 91622 2,100 17045 1523644 4585 1528199
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
I"j_\ 1: '_><’%:’%§j]%

e N

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHRARS
Difference
arising from
acquisition
Safety of non-
fund controlling
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise Share surplus Exchange interests*  Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium Teseve  expansion option reserve** fluctuation g final controlling
capital  account*  Contributed fund* fund*  resene* 2 resenet  Retaied  FER  diidend interests Total

ga#f B suplst v A BRE SRR

B

Ry HER SARR BREE  BRE BR B REER

(note 30)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note31)
(Wi30)  (WaEs2)  (WEE32)  (WaE32)  (ME32)  (WE31)

RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARSTT ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR ARBTR ARMTR ARNTR ARBTR

pofits'  EREE R Tl EER eqiy
REEH: 2B A4RE &3t B BEeE
(note 32) (note 33)
(Wit32) (Mit33)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2012 R-F-—%-f-A 35841 391,169 13,669 69,427 27400 46,685 - 4082 916,226 2,100 17,045 1,523,644 4555 1528199
Tota comprehersieincome  AEERENHEE

forthe year - - - - - - - (610) 328,644 - - 328,034 (1,713) 326321
Isuence ofbonusshares TR (HFEE30(a)

(note 30 @) 6,633 - (6,633) - - - - - - - - - - -
Becseofsaeopions  {TRENE 2 5% - - - - - - - - -6 AV
Transfer o share opton resenve. 1R IR

upon the exercise of s

share options - 2,455 - - - (2,455) - - - - - - - -
Equiysetled shareoption ~~ RAEEEB TR

arrangements (note 31) (HsE31) - - - - - 4314 - - - - - 4314 - 4314
Transfer from reeined pofts BB ERBE - - - 1556 9 - - - 23 - - - - -
Capta contrbution rom HELDEARER

non-controlling shareholders i)

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Provide for safety fund RO%REE

surplus resenve - - - - - - 33,021 - - - - 33,021 - 33,021
Utlisation of safety fund [FRR2EERR

Surplus resene - - - - - - (33,021) - - - - (33020 - (33020
Finel 2011 dvidend declared ~ EER-F——EXERE

(note 12) (F12) - - - - - - - - - - M) (17,049) - (17089)
Proposed finel 2012 didend $EE-T——FRERE

(note 12 (Fs12) - - - - - - - - (3592) - %91 - - -
131 December 2012 HRoE-T#12R=t-B ame06 39615 703 7098 281719 4854 o 3] 16614 2000 3%l 185070 682 1851912
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBERE BREAVBMRRARAZE

RMB1,802,464,000 (31 December 2011: RMB1,470,758,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

*x The Group provided for and utilised a safety fund surplus reserve according to *E
a Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February
2012.

AR 1,802,464,000L( —F —— ¢
+=A=+—8: AK®1,470,758,0007T) °

AEEREMRARFERR 2 EEEE
BRRN T _F_ABAHENEH
REAEBERNBARREER —HL2E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
.v'_R Eﬁﬁulb%ﬂs}%

2012 2011
k> At 3 —T——%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=g ARETR ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM EEERPEANRESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FrEE RT3 A 420,102 371,533
Adjustments for: PATIHE fEL A% -
Depreciation e 14 51,769 22,189
Amortisation of prepaid TEA A b B TR IR 8
land lease payments 15 1,947 1,499
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEH 16 709 264
Reversal of provision for impairment BE8 5 EWHIE
of trade receivables RIERE 22 - (505)
Provision of impairment of HAb EUGRIB R E R
other receivables 23 250 -
Provision of impairment of B AERERE
intangible assets 16 1,120 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment HAIEE BB 182 -
Equity-settled share option expense AL E R 31 4,314 7,669
Exchange losses [ 5 &5 18 7 36 3,089
Interest income F2WA 5 (3,631) (2,147)
Deferred income released to profit or loss ~ #EZEEIAELERA 29 (3,168) (20,079)
Finance costs RE R 6 88,785 36,011
562,415 419,523
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TSR, (8hn) 463 (45,086)
Decrease/(increase) in construction contracts 24 BRI (38h0) (815) 24,209
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWE 5708 K FE R RGN (289,893) (195,809)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits B3k * 71 & &
and other receivables Hitb eI R R A (38 Hn) (22,845) 5,987
Increase in trade and bills payables FERTE 5308 K R =IRIE N 217,253 224,126
Increase in other payables and accruals Eoh RS R K FE AT FRIEE hN 18,280 20,634
Income tax paid ETFTSH (124,446) (23,320)
Receipt of government grants BT 29 118,472 134,850
Net cash flows from operating activities BEEEEIR SR AT 478,884 565,114
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.R Eﬁrﬁl)lbgﬂ%

2012 2011
= =Bt 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEFIT

CASH FLOWS FROM BETHEENELSRE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, EBEWE - BEL&HEEE

plant and equipment (364,450) (907,787)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (396) (4,279)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments TEfT LR EFIEE (3,925) (62,116)
Payment to the directors for purchase of PLUEEM B R B3 g e

non-controlling interests of a subsidiary EEEINEN (13,385) -
Purchase of an available-for-sale EE M ERNEE

equity investment (380) -
Purchase of equity investments at fair value BB BEZZ AL EEIER

through profit or loss FIRAIG & - (7,000)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments 1 & & 818z 1% A A (BETER

at fair value through profit or loss R AR & M ET1S 3R - 10,044
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, H&EME « BE &L HEE

plant and equipment Fri5 08 160 -
Increase in pledged deposits HIRFER i‘ﬁbﬂ (160,838) (23,004)
Interest received BUFIE 3,631 2,147
Net cash flows used in investing activites & & &R © 7 HFEE (539,583) (991,995)
Net cash flows before financing activities mEEERMIR e R FRE (60,699) (426,881)
CASH FLOWS FROM REEHELENELSRE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS FIE - 198,273
Share issue expenses AN BT - (4,185)
Redemption of shares FE B A% (7 - (2,961)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling B A & FEIERRAR R &Y T &

shareholder of a subsidiary 4,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options R1T{E B IRERTS 5RIE 6,123 1,630
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFRATSFIE 1,328,309 675,294
Repayment of bank loans RITERZEE (787,435) (486,637)
Payment of other financing costs T E BB R A (18,769) (2,575)
Dividends paid EARE (17,045) (14,736)
Interest paid EAFE (71,237) (36,439)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEERERAFEE 443,946 327,664

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
.v'_R EEE/)ILE%‘:Z

2012 2011
—E--F —T—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARBTR AREEFTT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, (Rd) B8 383,247 (99,217)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRERESEEY
beginning of year 315,496 414,203
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXE T L  FEE (655) 510
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND FXRZIRE&RAEZEY
OF YEAR 698,088 315,496
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND IR&FIIR&ZEEUMELR S
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTAE & 24 698,088 315,496
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFEAR AR

2012 2011
s —T——%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BRE R 14 16,248 16,727
Investments in subsidiaries R BRARMIEE 17 - -
Due from subsidiaries FEUYBT B8 A FIFRIE 17 367,546 428,181
An available-for-sale equity investment AT ERARE 19 12,209 12,207
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 396,003 457,115
CURRENT ASSETS mREBEE
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 24 7,927 2,669
Total current assets mEEERE 7,927 2,669
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals E R 5RIE K BT 5TE 26 3,710 2,309
Interest-bearing bank loans MEERTTE R 27 33,394 37,434
Total current liabilities BB ERE 37,104 39,743
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE 29,177 37,074
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRHER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 366,826 420,041
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREE A
Interest-bearing bank loans M BERTTE R 27 6,280 39,663
Total non-current liabilities JERBAERT 6,280 39,663
Net assets FEE 360,546 380,378
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 42,606 35,841
Reserves G 32 282,019 327,492
Proposed final dividend PR AR RS B 12 35,921 17,045
Total equity T AEER 360,546 380,378
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli
BaT 4 #eis
Director Director
EZE Ea
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacturing, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls
and building integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV”) systems, as well as
the manufacturing and sale of solar power products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited (“Strong Eagle”), which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“1ASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

The proportionate share of total comprehensive income within a
subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it results
in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards
- Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets
IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EE#{E 45k &30 ERpRE4

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B EEEL|
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, REBWARZEVHHREPEATS
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial BB R 8 R A A FT AT RS RTBIRR
statements. g E AR -
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of BB s HEBROHREENE 1R
International Financial Reporting Standards BRELVRBE  EXEDERYBHRE
— Government Loans 2 SERIBFTE S AEAT?
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: BRBaRS HERMBEREENETH
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets RANETRE] 2HIA: REHHE
and Financial Liabilities ® BER2BBENET
IFRS9 Financial Instruments* BRBaRS EHTA!
HRIE 95
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements ? BB s mEABEE
ERFE 105
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 2 Gl e B EZH
ERIE 115
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 2 BRGBaRS RERMERER"
ERIE 125
IFRS 10, IFRS 11and IFRS12  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 ERMBREER ARMBEREERE 0%
Amendments - Transition Guidance 2 F105 - B BB RS RRIE 115

HIBRELER R BB B RS 2R
FURRER  F12% - HEKET
BB REER #EaT?

F12%4E5T
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 BB RS 2R BB IREERE 10%
IAS 27 (Revised) (Revised) - Investment Entities 3 £10% « HER BIRR B ISR R 125
Amendments B S %R REIBR& AR5 27 5%
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SHENE 27K AT
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 2 BRIBMEER AnEEE?
F135
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation Gl HER G ERE L RTHF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits ?

IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements 2

IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures ®

IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities 3

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in

2009-2011 Cycle May 20122

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information
about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an
entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of
whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace I1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of 1AS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit
risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects to
adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect
in conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all

phases is issued.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities
including special purpose entities or structured entities. It includes a
new definition of control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 require management
of the Group to exercise significant judgment to determine which
entities are controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS 27 and
SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 replaces the
portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It
also addresses the issues raised in SIC-12. Based on the preliminary
analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on

the currently held investments of the Group.

IFRS 11 replaces |IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It
describes the accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations
and joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures

using proportionate consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included
in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, 1AS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures and |AS 28 Investments in Associates. It
also introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.

In June 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of these standards,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information
to only the preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify
that retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between IFRS 10 and IAS 27 or SIC-12 at the beginning of the annual
period in which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time. Furthermore,
for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present comparative
information for periods before IFRS 12 is first applied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in October 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS
9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The amendments to IFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
Group expects that these amendments will not have any impact on
the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as defined in

IFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS 28 as a
result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (Revised), I1AS 28
(Revised), and the subsequent amendments to these standards issued

in June and October 2012 from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
|IFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in which the
Group is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively

from 1 January 2013.

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

2.3 EMEMIE R ERBIEFRE

BaEEAl (E)

R-F——F+ABRMNBERIBRE
EHFI0ORNEEREREBRENE
F IHAENEREBEEERNERN
FABERNPIMER - WEEBARE
B B HmE ERFE KRB AT
FBBHEBIEAFEIIR - MIEAFFA
R - BIRMBHRESENE 120 RERE
AHERIFE 275 (RRIERT) BETTREE
7] e BRI M E RIS 125 M ERT
NHINREBEBORERTE - AEEE
5l AR R SEEIRR B S 3R 2R A
FI0MARENREER - WAFERT
B e W RNEBERERTE -

R 8 1 B PR B A5 v 2 AR I 28 1057~ BURR
BARE IR A RIS 11 5% R BIBR B TR s 4
AIEE125% - ERR SRR 27 5% R E
e HER 28RN R BIER] - A%
BEEHE T —=F—A— HREHENE
PREA TSR RS 105 - BIBRBI SR
HRIFELLS - AR BEREERFE 12
5% - BBR SRR 275 (KEERT) -
BIBR & A 5 2857 (I8 R] ) R =
T-_FAE+AEMHZEELR

BIERT -

BIBREA SR EERIE 135t T AR E
ENRBEEE  AABEMAENE K
R RAEBRYBREESEANERD
WEMTE - ZEAL T REAREEAR
ERRABENER  BEAEEMERK
B HRELANCREIAFERRIAE
ENBRT - BOAEAAREERH
Tisl - AEEEHE T —=F—H
— H SR AN BRI B TS S 2R RS 135 ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented in
OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss
at a future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of a net
investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign operations,
net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-
for-sale financial assets) would be presented separately from items
which will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments will affect presentation only and have no impact on the
financial position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.

IAS 19 Amendments include a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
revised standard introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the choice to defer
the recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination benefits,
the classification of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of
defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt IAS 19 Amendments
from 1 January 2013.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.
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BAFE AR Y RE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in May
2012 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some
of the amendments may result in changes in accounting policies,
none of these amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a
significant on the Group’s policies are as follows:

(@) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the
difference between voluntary additional comparative information
and the minimum required comparative information. Generally,
the minimum required comparative period is the previous
period. An entity must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the previous period.
The additional comparative information does not need to contain
a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period
must be presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

(b)  IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that income
taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements from IAS 32 and
requires entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity holders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEHBRBE(8)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEREERRE(E)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to REERERARTEEE A PRETR
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment AEEROBEEENEE TBFEX
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an AEER D o MR BRZEDR - Al st
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously BEEMNIJKEESE RBTERNUETE
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has ERTIRE S EAEET I ELHBEE
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable B FeREBEEERNEENRE
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying 51 - B eRE ] Ha AT
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ FEVERZEEEERREBEME
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in TEHBREE (FIBRE(IAT B8 ) -
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit Bl R E R TR B E 4 i e s &
or loss in the period in which it arises. N
Related parties FAER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT B R — 77 R AR B A B
o
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) EBEAB—BALIZALCH
and that person BEOREKE - MZAT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; M ol Bk L ElE AL
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HAEEBERFE K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAEESAEEEGREH
Group or of a parent of the Group; FTEEBABNEP—ZK
88
or %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEETBHRBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) FRER (&)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b)) ZALTRERBMmMFAS THEMA—
applies: (&M -
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEgEASEBER—SE
A 4=VNS!

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il ZERBRS —RELBHEE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the RERAELE(HS—K
other entity): EEMNTARF - FIBARK

RRMBAR])

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEEEAEERIAR—F
third party; =AmEEhE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (ivy ZERAFE=-FETENGE
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ M5 —RERBURZ

FEZHEBOBEQR

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v) EBREAFREEIEALESF
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the HE BREMESMmERT
Group; RIBEBL AR AETE

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (i) ZEBIZ@EMATAL
identified in (a); and PEHIs R HEES - R

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) R @) BT R A T ¥ %
over the entity or is a member of the key management ERAEATENNBZE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). B(HZEENEAA) X

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Operating rights represent rights to operate solar power water heating
systems granted by certain schools and are stated at cost, that is,
the fair value of consideration received or receivable in exchange for
the construction services provided under the relevant operating right
agreement, less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put into commercial
production.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases,
net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to
do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold
these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the assets in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is

the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are

written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-

off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination of
what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment losses on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial

liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction

COsts.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and

interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in organised
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices at the
close of business at the end of the reporting period, without any
deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments where there
is no active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials and labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of

variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated

by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an

amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an

amount due to contract customers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” above;

(c)  from the rendering of services, the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Contracts
for services” below;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed
contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and
other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services and
attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the revenue,
the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion can be
measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established by
reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs
to be incurred under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract customers.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EEEBHRBE(F)
POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued) LA BERER X (48)
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by EENREZEERGNA  BETZH
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The HBE2BARBEE - AREEHINT
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, HEMFER B ERRTE - BFHRE
further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial statements. PsE 31 TS -
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with KR SKRIS G HER IR - RAEss
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the BB 5 BTN AE FE 35 D07 5 M 1S T
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative R NEBEREHREZHBEAHANRK
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each BEERHMERNRHAST - RIS
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which @ BRI 2 AV AR B R AN R B & 4 B
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the [Bhg#E TASE M ET o X—HIf
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or BB R SE A R BBV BAR IER 2
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the ETFZEEE) o

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, BEREBHEBHNRM I emRIE - K
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional IER A EE R Z R mBNKT S R S IER
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting B - BIZER T e hENE&m
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is R FERB GRS R IERERE
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions HAb BB &SGR K SRS IR 478
are satisfied. ERK °

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a BB G EERNERT
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been WERENRBEFERE  SERAZS
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an TERER - MRS 2R o thoh - B
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair IR BERB S AR EE/ER
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the BHRENEEBTEHFTEEFNRES
employee as measured at the date of modification. WEMEMBRmE  AXRESHE

7
s ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction
awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEETBRBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits (Continued) HivESEH (&)
In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined BRUA BTSN - REE TR EETER
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme EELHEBIER I AES T ENEDIR
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes TR ERARTEEIEATE ST ([RE
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made ®ErE) HREE NiREEELRF®
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are AETEDLMED - WiRERESFTE
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with FIAR R PA B RS A F B 1B a5 F0BR - 9818
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held SEENEERAEEEESH - BB
separately from those of the Group in an independent administered VEBENESRE
fund.
Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public A AL EEEERLEENEREA
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss e DREEREEENG -
as incurred.
Borrowing costs EERE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction Wig - BRI EECEREE(WEE
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a BREFEBERITASXNBEENE
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, E)EEREENEEXNEAE FUER
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation b EABIZEEE - ZEBEEKA
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially MEMERZEEEETS HiZREER]
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the ERARHEMRER LI - BAESE
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure REENRYNEEEENERIRER
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. JWABE FRERCHEE KA F
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are Br oo HtEERAREEBHRARKER
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an FHERRHAY - BEKRABFERER
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. BEMHEZEREEERBHEMK R

K -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, as this is the
principal currency of the economic environment in which the Group
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEETBRBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) HhiEs (&)
The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group are HRASEENE T AR E I IE
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, AR - RRER  ZEEEBNEE
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the kB BEREARNRTERREAA
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their R¥ - B RZE A INGE T [ =1k
profit or loss are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for H o RPEEMELZHENEMEEK
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other WERWRINERBREANZRIE -
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash B EBRERERME - BINHE AR
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange MIReRBRREREZ HMIRTTER
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash BE A AR - FRBINGEBLQRHKE
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are BUHRSRBRFNIETSEEHE
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the BARKE -
year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. xE:gEsHasEt
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires AEEUBBREZFRE  FTEEEEE
management to make significant estimates and assumptions that HEXEFTRRBRE - BEAFTTAREE
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and TEMEREA - BER - BEREEZ
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of CREMEABEFEBEUARSIARABEZE
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these significant assumptions o AT ARNBEZREREMERTZ
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material THEFTHEZE SR EREARAR
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected B EERABZRREELEXR
in the future. FEE o
Estimation uncertainty A FEEER
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of T RS ER A R B R AR SR AN E A Al BT
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have TEETEZHEBZRRAMEEHEER
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying R ZEBEE T EVREENEE
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are MEBEFEmEERNERFAENEKAR
described below. fag o
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BA AR Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Percentage of completion of construction contract works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contract of construction work, which requires
estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion
is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over the total
budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the activity is entered
into and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs
are more than expected, an impairment loss may arise.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT
have not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities, objective
estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision of PRC CIT
to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is
determined. The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December
2012 was RMB26,140,000 (2011: RMB77,067,000).

FEEHEE (B

st A RERR (F)
BELGFTERTES

AEBERBEZETRRENARNKRIA
DHHERRA - MEERFTREEEF
HffEt - RIEBRESZERRENAE
ERERKARETHE - MBENE
RIS ALREEE GG - EREEAR
FrETTREIMIEEER - ABFRHK A
MESHERTAH-REX TR S H
Al - Bt - FERMITHBES - AEHE
HREERMRAEBEEANE RBAM
BRRANGEHETERERT - 11K
BaRRARERRLRER S BMKA
REM R - BIRJREELRERR -

FEYIRRATIEH ([ ILF A7)

NS B ) R B K B i B Y B A BB IR
REMEN - AREACEMSHRNE
FEERES ABRBHEERR - K
FEARBAIRIENREER  EER
E AR E MGG  EERER
ISTEE - WZEFENRETRTRE
REVIREN R ZRETEMEN
RAREE&ERFAMOTHEE - B
T+ -_A=t+—HWENE
Fr{SHi e BRE (B & A R HE 26,140,000 7T
(ZZ——%F : AR¥77,067,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the Group is
based on ongoing assessment of the recoverability and the aged
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of those receivables, including the
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances might be required. At 31 December 2012, impairment
provision for receivables amounted to approximately RMB2,955,000
(2011: RMB2,705,000). Further details are given in notes 22 and 23
to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The
depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into account
changes in circumstances.
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BA AR Y RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually to determine
whether any indication of impairment exists. Where an indicator of
impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is
made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. The carrying value of the non-financial assets
is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable in accordance
with the accounting policy as disclosed in the relevant part of this
section. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to estimate
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2012.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2012 was RMB18,290,000 (2011:
RMB17,216,000). Further details are given in note 28 to the financial
statements.

FEEHEE (B

st A EEER (B)
e MEEZRE

AEBESFHESRSEL SN - AR
TEEBEARERREFE - LFHE
BERR - AfEH AU E S BE EA G
it BIAREER D ERALEEHBEE
MBS E o  RABMEME S REZ G5
BR - EHF SRR REER EEA
WEE - PR EEZ REEETTRE
et o fEEHEREER - AREAGE
ReELBUNARRRERE @ WEE
BENFTRE - UFEZEHSREN
HE-

FRZ T FE

2 EE - MRER R EMEL
ZIEFRTARAR o ZE AR T ER B AT
MEEREERBELSR  Breg
AAEPRmUSCHBEFETAMER
BEANE - AREREHRERREHN
mREME e S ——F+=-A=+—
B WERFERERS -

BEHREE

i 15 2R AT BE H IR A I R B
Ao EREABRLERREE  EEFARE
AR IRFE AR 2 ) ) AT BE R ) B BB A %
RHIARBE A LB ARG - AREER]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 4. STEEFRWA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents an appropriate WA AREERNEETE) BERESR
proportion of contract revenue of construction contracts; the value of #)& RUA R E E LB % i AR 7S &Y
services rendered, net of business tax and government surcharges; BEE  MBREERIBENNE  RE
and the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and EEmMmMNEZEE - HIRISED LB
government surcharges, and after allowances for returns and trade MEonii - WEMRERESIWIEL%E
discounts. f& o
The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were mainly AEENRARFEZFMEREERE
derived from curtain wall (including solar power products) supply B (BEAGEER) HENZTER
and installation service, which is regarded as a single reportable %o EWRAE - 2HHI 0 ERK
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which information is SERRERERDEERREETM
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for the purpose ZREEWMERB T B o - K
of resources allocation and performance assessment. In addition, the SEFEANTZEEMRP AR -
principal assets employed by the Group are located in Mainland China. It BRIAZE AR AR - EA
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide 2RI
disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures DERATMAHEE
Information about products and services B REm RAREEIER
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external customers TREIIRER RRBEE D8k 8N
by product and service and the percentage of total revenue by product BB A R AN FEIRE G &R
and service during the year: SDHBIRAE DL
2012 2011
i St 3 —E——F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREBTR ARETTT
Construction contracts EEAR 2,294,716 74.1 1,807,165 75.1
Sale of goods EmiHE 795,143 25.7 593,923 24.7
Rendering of design services R RTS 3,140 0.1 3,163 0.1
Sale of electricity ENIHE 4,512 0.1 1,961 0.1
3,097,511 100.0 2,406,212 100.0
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 4,
(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

FEBEF RN ()

HUEEATMGAME (F)
1o lim B

(@) KBNEEFFEUA

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFx ARBT T
Mainland China AR B K B 2,951,241 95.3 2,375,719 98.7
Outside Mainland China PR A B LA SN [ 146,270 4.7 30,493 1.3
3,097,511 100.0 2,406,212 100.0
(b)  Non-current assets (b) ERBEE
2012 2011
k- Bt 3 —T—%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR ARETTT
Mainland China AR B K B 1,632,723 99.0 1,376,456 98.8
Hong Kong BB 16,248 1.0 16,727 1.2
1,648,971 100.0 1,393,183 100.0

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of

the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue during the year.

AR B AR AR Y AR T
85 BYTaEeRTARBIEHA
A -

B EEFAER

B B BE—SMNEE P A AR E
REFZWAR 10% KA L -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5. Rt A RUss

E AR ATAT -

2012 2011

—F-=F —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETIT

Interest income FEUA 3,631 2,147

Government grants* BT fBh * 10,315 37,804
Deferred income released to BEEEMIETEWA

profit or loss (note 29) (FfzE29) 3,168 -

Others Hh 4,021 1,828

21,135 41,779

*

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

* PR A B2 S BORROARE R R T 23E

grants. FHHREIR ©
6. FINANCE COSTS RIER A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BAYEN DT -

2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT

Interest on bank loans HARRAFTRNEHEEDN
wholly repayable within five years RITERBF) B 56,934 36,439
Less: Interest capitalised o BAREFE (1,221) (3,003)
55,713 33,436
Interest on discounted bills receivable BhIREMEIEFIE 14,303 -
Other finance costs E g & AR 18,769 2,575
88,785 36,011

Capitalisation rate of borrowing costs BB A& 21k &

3.75%+ HIBOR
3.75% nEHERTT
EEZ-,

3.75%+HIBOR
3.75% M&EBRIT
RIZHFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. B#¥iEnEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): RNEERRFL AR F TR, (GEA) A
T&IE
2012 2011
—g-C-F —T——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE ARETRT AREFIT

Cost of construction contracts BEA B REFRIEKA

and design services 1,728,483 1,382,594
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 615,350 441,505
Cost of electricity sold BEE KA 4,528 1,519
Depreciation e 14 51,769 22,189
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT L E R OE

lease payments 15 1,947 1,499
Amortisation of intangible assets & E & 51 16 709 264
Minimum lease payments under & E THREHEERK

operating leases 5,383 6,070
Research costs HFRAR 30,414 21,495
Auditors’ remuneration I EREM BN & 5,453 4,603
Staff costs (including directors’ ~ BEIXA(BREEEFR

and chief executive’s TR E (FI5E8))

remuneration (note 8)):

Wages and salaries and T#& - HekiB@EER

relevant benefits 110,847 89,731
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B 4,494 2,497
Equity-settled share MRAEEE 2 FEARAE T 2

option expense 31 4,314 7,669

119,655 99,897
Impairment of intangible assets B ERE 16 1,120 -
Provision for/(reversal of FEUFRIB R (B B (=)

provision for) impairment

of receivables 22,23 250 (505)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BEK

property, plant and equipment KA E BB 182 -
Exchange losses, net & H 518 - JF5E 36 3,089
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BAFE AR Y RE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERITHAHIME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BEEBBARIFAERAF (B R
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Frl) &% EmARRREER N E
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) and Section 161 of the Il EENTFREE RITHAZ NS
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: N
2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREEFIT
Fees fiakey 4,718 4218
Other emoluments: HEmpi< -
Salaries, allowances and e R REDA=
benefits in kind 1,138 1,160
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 33 30
Equity-settled share option expense ~ BRANGEHE 2 BEIRIER - 774
5,889 6,182
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BA AR Y RE

S _.

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EERTHAAEIME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Salaries, Equity-

allowances Pension settled

and benefits scheme share option
in kind contributions expense Total

Fees #i& - E0h BiAE UESEEZ  remuneration

wE REDHE RIS ERERX w8t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARE®TR AR%®TR ARETR ARBTR

2012 —E—-F
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Liu Hongwei BUAT #E e 1,465 426 11 - 1,902
Mr. Sun Jinli R e 1,221 328 11 - 1,560
Mr. Xie Wen Ep e 1,221 384 11 - 1,616
3,907 1,138 33 - 5,078
Non-executive directors:  FEBITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong EEEEE 110 - - - 110
Mr. Li Huizhong TemkE 110 - - - 110
220 - - - 220
Independent non-executive &3 JEFTTES :
directors:
Mr. Wang Ching FREE 163 - - - 163
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon Sk & %4 244 - - - 244
Mr. Cheng Jinshu (b 184 - - - 184
591 - - - 591
4,718 1,138 33 - 5,889
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BAFE AR Y RE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHAHME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme share option
in kind contributions expense Total
Fees ¥rad - 2R4 BRE DERAHE 2 remuneration

e REWAE  SEIHE BRERAX HEest
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TET ARBETT ARBTT ARETL

2011 —F——F
Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei BT 1,312 432 10 220 1,974
Mr. Sun Jinli Rkt 1,049 362 10 220 1,641
Mr. Xie Wen A 1,049 366 10 220 1,645
3,410 1,160 30 660 5,260
Non-executive directors:  FEEATTESE :
Mr. Lin Xiaofeng MBI ST A 55 - - - 55
Mr. Cao Zhirong HERERE 110 - - - 110
Mr. Li Huizhong TgREE 55 - - - 55
220 - - - 220
Independent non-executive 3 JEITES -
directors:
Mr. Wang Ching ERtE 162 - - 38 200
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon S5k E %4 243 - - 38 281
Mr. Cheng Jinshu (R bt 183 - - 38 221
588 - - 114 702
4218 1,160 30 774 6,182
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRIW M FZFRITHBHELR
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year EHEFN oL (T —F  8\) -
(2011: Nil).
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BA AR Y RE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
and the chief executive (2011: two directors and the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2011: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

AisEFHES

FR - AfussFMES P REMLE
ERTRER(ZT——F  WuEF
RITHARE)  WENFHFBEHRR L
XHE8 T (T ——F: W
) EARBEERITREHESH R

Company are as follows: EFNMBFIEFBET

2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx ARETF T

Salaries, allowances and e ERLREYA S
benefits in kind 1,526 1,287
Pension scheme contributions RS RS 18 26
Equity-settled share option expense ~ MR ANGEH 2 FEIRER - 454
1,544 1,767

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

TFF BN E R IFE F R IFTT AR A

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as SHEEMNHENT :
follows:
Number of employees
ES8HE
2012 2011
—T—CfF —T—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7t = 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
2 2
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BAFE AR Y RE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British Virgin
Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda and
the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong and Nigeria profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong
Kong and Nigeria during the year.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective CIT rates
applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as determined
in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as
follows:

10. FRIfEHiF<

REBARENKE R RIFEMEZR A
FREBTESRMRAES - RERE
EZ ML ©

REBRERRBREIEEEEER
AEBEBAFNARENABRLES
ZAEMFTEH

RN FAAEE L ENEERE A FIE
A RREUE ] ERBOR A I
BAREBNDNE B R o

EEMSHBHDENDBEARENB R
FIERMBREEMBHRE - ZHET)
BARFEEREZBAMSTER KRG

BEE -

AEEMEHAXERMHMT

2012 2011
k- =Bt 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT

Current — Mainland China EHIPMSEH - PBIKRE
— Charge for the year - FARAX 73,519 79,369
Deferred (note 28) PRIE (f5E28) 19,652 656
Total tax charge for the year FARIBFAS 25 93,171 80,025
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
applicable tax rates for the jurisdictions in which companies within the
Group to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

10.

Fria®ipsZ ()

ERAREEAZ AR MEREERNE
AR ENRBEADE N WBRIES L
HLBRBREAEORE ERENY
BRI

2012 2011

k- =Bt 3 %

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREF T

Profit before tax BB RT3 A 420,102 371,533

At the applicable tax rates ZEAFSHERTE 64,508 49,728

Expenses not deductible for tax AT R TR S 7,937 12,425
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on IR B P B KR A R
the distributable profits B R 5 Ik R 5% B &

of the Group’s subsidiaries BUTEIBIR 2 (M 28)

in Mainland China (note 28) 20,726 17,872
Tax charge at the Group's REBERBENHIEBERS

effective tax rate 93,171 80,025

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”) approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007,
except for Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Singyes”) and Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Singyes Renewable Energy”), which are further mentioned below, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to CIT at a rate of
25%.

Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes Renewable Energy were awarded the
certificate of High Technologies Enterprise (the “Certificate”) by
the Guangdong Science and Technology Department, Guangdong
Provincial Finance Bureau, Guangdong Provincial Office of the State
Administration of Taxation and the Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation
Bureau in 2011, effective for three years from the respective dates of
issuance of the Certificate. In accordance with the New CIT Law, the
applicable CIT rate for Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes Renewable Energy
was 15% for 2012.

EREEARRKRREN_FTLF=
AT RBHERBEEERMAETUA([#d
EFREBUED BB REEGERER
RAERRARN([HEERK]) RIKGEERN
BERBH AR AR ([ BEFEEIR ) KA
SR B A R B KR 2 EL BRI 1 RE AR
25% 2 (REFISH o TRE M K MR
BER 2 EMEEMEHAARAMT -

R-T——5F  FRBHAEREERER
BEREMBRIME  BEREVEE -
EREBRVMEREERE I HRBER
BEEHRMEEFE(EE]) B
EEREREZHR=FNER - RE
R EMGHOE - KIE L 2E  B R
ERR T —FNLERAEHRMES
15%
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BAFE AR Y RE

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. KA E AEGRZT

COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the HE-Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFE
year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss of RMB13,269,000 KABER AELE T BEBEA
(2011: loss of RMB24,165,000), which has been dealt with in the R#13,269,000t(—ZF——4F : Fi&
financial statements of the Company (note 32). AR ¥24,165,0007T) © B &HRARQ A
g (H3E32) ©
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2012 2011
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Proposed final — HK$7 cents ERARARE - §EBER0.07ET
(2011: HK$4 cents) (ZZT——% : 0.0487T)
per ordinary share 35,921 17,045
35,921 17,045
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval AFEEHEIR 2 RPRBBERARGIRE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general RIEEREBEF RS it -
meeting.
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. RATEERERITEAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE HERER
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based BRERZN HRBEAQ R L BERRS
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of BABEFEFREFMFADEITEBR
the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares F) D0t 15 21630,874,338 (=T ——
of 630,874,338 (2011: 615,801,852) in issue during the year, as % : 615,801,852 % ) 5T & - WEH AR
adjusted to reflect the bonus share issue during the year. DA S BRLE AT J 2 3577 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. AATEBERESHRAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE iEERER ()
COMPANY (Continued)
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based EREERF TIRBEAQR L BEST
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the BABEERENFE - stEREAZ
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in LB TSR EERERET
the calculation includes 105,126,666 bonus shares issued on 15 June HE GFAZE——F XA +RH#ET
2012 (note 30), as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, 2 4T% 105,126,666 % (F5E30) + A K
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have BRERFT A EBE L BRWERBITE
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion AR AT RRE EERT 2 TR
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. I8 -
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: FTESRERREERF TR -
2012 2011
k- St 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Earnings &
Profit attributable to ordinary FTEESRERREERT
equity holders of the Company ARE) LB EREE ARG T
for the basic and diluted
earnings calculations 328,644 290,850

Number of shares

i3t SEE]
2012 2011
—F—-—F —E—F
(Restated)
($E75)
Shares B
Weighted average number of FTEERERRFNEET
ordinary shares in issue LRARAY I T 2
for the basic earnings per
share calculation 630,874,338 615,801,852
Effect of dilution — weighted average — BEESZ — LB INE
number of ordinary shares: 8
Share options B 109,371 1,257,931
630,983,709 617,059,783
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE
Group AEE
Office
equipment
Land and Plant and Motor  and furniture  Construction
buildings machinery vehicles HWAZ in progress Total
T REF R RE  RERER EETE @zt
31 December 2012 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—%¥--#+-H=1+-H ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2012 RZZ-ZF—H—H 546,152 231,808 11,640 11,493 511,098 1,312,191
Additions NE 96 9,534 291 6,420 319,584 335,925
Transfers #E 503,967 299,711 - 5,005 (808,683) -
Disposals HE - - (362) (96) - (458)
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 3 - - - - 3

At 31 December 2012 —EF—=F

+ZA=+—H 1,050,218 541,053 11,569 22,822 21,999 1,647,661
Accumulated E5gii
depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F—-A—H 9,026 32,143 4,438 5,122 - 50,729
Charged for AEEHE (M7)
the year (note 7) 16,847 30,556 2,034 2,332 - 51,769
Disposals HE - - (92) (24) (116)

Exchange realignment  [E 5 f1% - - - - - _

At 31 December 2012 R=Z—=F
+-A=1t—H 25,873 62,699 6,380 7,430 - 102,382

Net carrying amount: FREF{H :
At 1 January 2012 RZZT——F—f—H 537,126 199,665 7,202 6,371 511,098 1,261,462

At31 December 2012 HMZZE—=F
+-A=1+—-H 1,024,345 478,354 5,189 15,392 21,999 1,545,279
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BEREE (B)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) AERE(E)
Office
equipment
Land and Plant and Motor  and furniture  Construction
buildings machinery vehicles WAE in progress Total
i RigF Has® A BEREA EETR Bt
31 December 2011 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—T——FE+-F=1+-H ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2011 R-_E——%—HF—H 77772 56,773 9,755 7,637 143,897 295,834
Additions AE 1,159 27,260 1,885 3,862 983,066 1,017,232
Transfers e 468,090 147,775 - - (615,865) -
Exchange realignment [ % #% (869) - - (6) - (875)
At 31 December 2011 —ZF——%
+-A=1t—H 546,152 231,808 11,640 11,493 511,098 1,312,191
Accumulated 2iRE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—F—H 3,248 18919 2,721 3,676 - 28,564
Charged for AEERE (HE7)
the year (note 7) 5,800 13,224 1,717 1,448 - 22,189
Exchange realignment [ i F1% (22) - - 2 - (24)
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——%5
+T-A=ft—-H 9,026 32,143 4438 5,122 - 50,729
Net carrying amount: FREF{H :
At 1 January 2011 R=E——F—[—H 74,524 37,854 7,034 3,961 143,897 267,270
At 31 December 2011 R=ZT——%5
+-A=+-H 537,126 199,665 7,202 6371 511,098 1,261,462
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with RZE—ZF+=ZA=1+—0  ~5H
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB275,061,000 (2011: BREFENARE275061,0007T (=
RMB20,006,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the T——1F : AR 20,006,0007T) K&
Group (note 27). T MEFERBIEAR TALEED

RITEFRZPER (M5E27) »

As at 31 December 2012, the application for the property ownership RZTE—ZF+ZA=+—8 " EEF
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of BE# A AR 287,888,000 0 (& ——
approximately RMB287,888,000 (2011: Nil) was in progress. FRICETEFIYWEERSELE

HERFRIEET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE (&)
(Continued)
Company EAT]
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings WAERIE Total
T RiEF ERA st
31 December 2012 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—®B-—#+=-A=+—H ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT
Cost: R
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——%F—AF—H 17,522 165 17,687
Additions NE - - -
Exchange realignment b 3, B 3 - 3
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-_A=+—H 17,525 165 17,690
Accumulated depreciation: RItiRE .
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 830 130 960
Charged for the year KEEHE 450 32 482
Exchange realignment Rk - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-_A=+—H 1,280 162 1,442
Net carrying amount: BRTF{E :
At 1 January 2012 RnZZE——F—HF—H 16,692 35 16,727
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-_A=+—H 16,245 3 16,248
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERRE (E)
(Continued)
Company (Continued) AAT (E)
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings P NE Total
T RIEF JNEE: “BEt
31 December 2011 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—F+ZA=+—H AREEFIT AREFIT AREEFIT
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2011 R-E—F—H—H 18,390 130 18,520
Additions NE - 41 41
Exchange realignment B 3, B (868) (6) (874)
At 31 December 2011 R_E—F+=-_A=+—H 17,522 165 17,687
Accumulated depreciation: REHiRE -
At 1 January 2011 nZ—ZE——F—H—H 470 36 506
Charged for the year REEHE 382 9% 478
Exchange realignment PE AR (22) 2) (24)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+=_A=+—H 830 130 960
Net carrying amount: RTEE(E :

At 1 January 2011 R—E=—F—H—H 17,920 94 18,014
At 31 December 2011 R_E——F+=_A=+—H 16,692 35 16,727
At 31 December 2012, the Company’s land and buildings with N-ZEBE——F+=-A=+—R0 ' &A1 7
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB16,245,000 (2011: BREFENAREK16,2450007T (==
RMB16,692,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the ——4& : AR#¥16,692,0007T) H) L b
Group (note 27). MEFEERBEAR TASEEMIRITE

KR (RE27) »
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AT LA ERIE
Group
&R
2012 2011
k- =Bt 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 94,644 34,027
Additions NE - 62,116
Amortisation charged for the year NEFEEE (M)

(note 7) (1,947) (1,499)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=Z+—HZEAE 92,697 94,644
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s prepaid land RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H F5H
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately BREFEXN AR 91,604,0000 (=
RMB91,604,000 (2011: RMB32,217,000) were pledged to secure ——4%F: AR#32,217,0007T) & T
bank loans granted to the Group (note 27). N T HASRIEEEREAR TAE

BEIRTTE R R (MIE27) ©

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated ME T HIREFEEERE - RF
in Mainland China. B A BE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group AEE
Operating
Software rights Total
B S st
31 December 2012 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—F——-f+=-H=+—H AREBTR ARETR ARBTRT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2012 RZT——F—H—H 868 4,107 4,975
Additions NE 396 - 396
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=-A=+—H 1,264 4,107 5,371
Accumulated amortisation: Faties -
At 1 January 2012 RnZZE——F—HF—H (292) (118) (410)
Provided during the year (note 7) 4 R4 (FizE7) (214) (495) (709)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+=-_A=+—H (506) (613) (1,119)
Impairment: iE
At 1 January 2012 RnZZE—=—F—H—H - - -
Provided during the year (note 7) F A% (FIzE7) - (1,120) (1,120)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZA=+—AH - (1,120) (1,120)
Net carrying amount: AREFE :
At 1 January 2012 RnZZE—=—F—HA—H 576 3,989 4,565
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=—A=+—H 758 2,374 3,132
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

16. B EE (18)

Group (Continued) AEE(E)
Operating
Software rights Total
it mERE st
31 December 2011 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F+ZA=+—H AREFT ARBFT AREBFT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2011 RnZZE—F—HA—H 696 - 696
Additions NE 172 4,107 4,279
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 868 4,107 4,975
Accumulated amortisation: H5Tiges -
At 1 January 2011 Hn-—ZE—F—H—H (146) - (146)
Provided during the year (note 7) R (H1zE7) (146) (118) (264)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+=A=+—H (292) (118) (410)
Net carrying amount: BREEE :
At 1 January 2011 nZZE—F—H—H 550 - 550
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H 576 3,989 4,565
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RKBATIRIIRE
Company
eV
2012 2011
-5 ZT——%F
RMB RMB
AR# AREE

Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ 3E_ETIRAIRE » AR

— Singyes Green Investment - FEFERE (BE)BRAR]
(HK) CompanyLimited ([HEHZEERE])
(“Singyes Green Investment”, (AIBABAREBRAT)
formerly named
“Innofast Investments Limited”) 2 2
- Singyes Green Technologies - BAEERMEREAR AR
(HK) Limited (“Singyes Green”) (BB 1 1
— Basic Force Group Limited — Basic Force Group Limited
(“Basic Force”) ([Basic Force) 1 1
— Top Access Management Limited — Top Access Management Limited
(“Top Access”) ([Top Access ) 1 1
— Singyes Engineering (H.K.) Co., td. - BIZ T2 (&FB) AR AT
(“Singyes Engineering”) ([EETRE]) 1 1
6 6
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s current RZE—ZFRZE——F+=ZA
assets as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were unsecured, interest- =t+—0  BERARTRBEEAR
free and were repayable on demand or within one year. FEWH B A RIFUE AEEA - 22 RA

REREFH—FAEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RMBATIIRE (B)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: WEARZFEHFIWT

Place and date of

incorporation/registration Percentage of
and operations Nominal value of equity attributable
Company name ML R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
AFERE EEBHERAH YRRAEE ESAC A SR A 3 5
Direct Indirect
E# i3
Singyes Green Investment ! Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
BERERE! 8 August 2001 2B REZR
BE/BE

“TT-E)\ANE

Singyes Green Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Design, manufacture, supply and
BBERERY 7 April 2009 BT installation of curtain walls
BB/ BA et BUE - ERTEER
“EENEMALHA
Basic Force British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  HK$1 100% - Investment holding
1 July 2009 AT REER
EBRAES/BE
kS g =
Top Access British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  HK$1 100% - Investment holding
6 July 2009 1T RER
RBREUES/ BB
“ETAELARA
Singyes Engineering Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Design, manufacture, supply and
METHR 3 August 2009 13T installation of curtain walls
B/ BE REr - BUE - ERTEER

“TTNFNAZE
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BA AR Y RE

-

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RMBATIRIRE (BB)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued) WEBAEZEEET - (8)

Place and date of

incorporation/registration Percentage of
and operations Nominal value of equity attributable
Company name ML R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
AFEH EEHARAH BRERAEE AATEMEREE A TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# i
Zhuhai Singyes 2 PRC/Mainland China 1US$9,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture, supply and
gEE? 21 August 1995 9,000,000 7T installation of curtain walls
hEREAR Rit o BE - HERZERE
—“WMEFNRZT—H
Singyes Renewable Energy > PRC/Mainland China US$13,125,000 - 100% Research, development,
EESUATE 11 October 2007 13,125,000 ¢ manufacture and sale of
RE /R E KR photovoltaic solar products
ZEEHETATH e - BUE R E R IARRSRY
FE

Zhuhai Singyes Xinye PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Development of new energy
Electricity Technology 30 November 2009 AR 20,000,000 7T materials, research and
Co., Ltd. ! hE B AR development of marine
(“Singyes Xinye”) “EENF+-A=T+H biology technology

KEBETNRBBERAR! FRERTERME Rk
([B%87)) R E YR

Zhuhai Singyes Photovoltaic ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 60% Research of photovoltaic film
Technologies Co., Ltd. * 31 March 2010 AR#20,000,0007T HARERIFFR
(“Singyes Photovoltaic”)  FREI/FEIAME

WEREAERRERRR —FT—SF=RA=1—H
([RERHR])

Hunan Singyes Solar PRC/Mainland China HK$227,000,000 - 100% Research, development,
Technology Co., Ltd. ® 18 August 2010 227,000,000 7T manufacture and sale of
(“Hunan Singyes”) B/ B K photovoltaic products

HAEEAGERR “Z-SFENATNR % FE - EER
BRARS([HmEE]) HERREM
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Place and date of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. RMBATEMIRE (1F)
IR AR 2 S HAIAT « ()

incorporation/registration Percentage of
and operations Nominal value of equity attributable
Company name ML R paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
A &MH EZHARAY HRBRAEE FATEEEDER EEER
Direct Indirect
Ef Gtz

Singyes Energy-saving PRC/Mainland China US$18,847,100 - 100% Research and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. ¢ 7 December 2010 18,847,100 L energy-saving products
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) B /thEIAfE MR REENEER

WHREHHERBAERARS —E-FF+-A+H
([EZE8 )

Tianjin Singyes Renewable ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100% Research and sale of
Energy Technology 25 July 2011 AR 30,000,0007T photovoltaic products
Co., Ltd. RE REAKE HERHEEARER
(“Tianjin Singyes”) & “T—%tA=THA

REREFERERAA
(TREEX])S

Singyes renewable energy Nigeria/Nigeria - - 100% Sale of photovoltaic products
Technology Nigeria 16 June 2011 HEXRER
Co., Ltd. EARE,/fEAME
(“Singyes Nigeria”) 7 —E——FA+5A

BENEREBNT
MBBRAR
(TeBMDER )

Xinjiang Singyes Renewable  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Research and sale of
Energy Technology 7 September 2012 AR®10,000,0007T photovoltaic products
Co., Ltd. 8 B/ REI AR HERHE R RER
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) “Z-—fNAtH

HBEEMERER DA
([FmEsE])

Changde Singyes Renewable  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Research and sale of
Energy Technology 26 November 2012 AK10,000,0007T photovoltaic products
Co., Ltd. HE/ REAKE HARBEEARER
(“Changde Singyes”) ZE-ZFft—AZtAH

RREEXMERERLR®
(TEREX])
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BA AR Y RE

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

During the year, Singyes Green Investment (formerly known as Innofast
Investments Limited) changed its name to Singyes Green Investment (HK)
Company Limited. Singyes Xinye (formerly known as Zhuhai Singyes
Marine Biology Technology Co., Ltd.) changed its name to Zhuhai Singyes
Xinye Electricity Technology Co., Ltd.

Zhuhai Singyes was registered as a co-operative joint venture enterprise
under PRC law. In April 2012, the Group increased its registered capital
in Zhuhai Singyes from US$8,000,000 to US$12,000,000. In July 2012,
the capital injection of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,350,000) was paid in cash by the Group. As a result, the paid-
up capital of Zhuhai Singyes increased from US$8,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB59,031,000) to US$9,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB65,381,000).

Singyes Renewable Energy was registered as a wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise under PRC law. In June 2012, the Group reduced its registered
capital by a total of US$25,875,000, the registered capital of Singyes
Renewable Energy decreased from US$39,000,000 to US$13,125,000.

Singyes Photovoltaic was registered as a foreign investment enterprise
under PRC law. In March 2012, the Group and the non-controlling
interest shareholder increased their capital injections in Singyes
Photovoltaic by a total of RMB10,000,000. The additional capital
injections were satisfied by cash. Upon the completion of the additional
capital injections, the registered paid-up capital of Singyes Photovoltaic
increased from RMB10,000,000 to RMB20,000,000.

Hunan Singyes and Tianjin Singyes were registered as wholly-foreign-

owned enterprises under PRC law.

The equity interest of Hunan Singyes has been pledged to secure the
Group’s bank loans amounting to HK$40,000,000 (note 27).

17. RIBABIMIRE (8)

MEBARZFERIINT « (8)

FA - BEESERE (FIRENRESR
RAR)ERREEEERE(FE)
BRAR - FEEN (AIRNGERE
FEMRBRAERAR) ERRWEER
ENRBERRE -

HEREDNREBERBEEZEAMAEE
REL¥E - NZ_FT——FMA - K&
B kg I 5 A 31 & 7K 53 8,000,000
FETHEHNZE12,000,000F 7T - R-F
—ZHFtA AEEURSIMNER
JE# 1,000,000 7T (HHERHDARE
6,350,0007T) © F It - BB FE 2 4
SB B 7N 7 8,000,000 % 7T (FHE R KA
ER#59,031,000 7t) # 0 & 9,000,000
ET(HHERHARE5,381,000T) °

FE LR IIREF B E 2T M A
BABELE R-ZT——F~ A &
=B R H & R A #£25,875,000
FEor - HEAL IR M AR A &
39,000,000 % 7T i 4> % 13,125,000 3
e

BEHXRRDIRBRBEEETMAINE
hE-N-_ZT——F=f KEHAK
FEVRAR R a5 AR BRI AN S R B B e R
KTEER - A5 AR 10,000,000
T o FEEARUBRSHHIEA - 88
HNEE TR IR B R 0 R AR
AN A% 10,000,000 TTIEINE AR
# 20,000,000 7T °

HE R KRR BRI BUA R
MRS EBERE -

S EENRECKPEARNEES
%840,000,000 78 T R ER 1T E SRV EIR
(Mi5£27) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PMBASIMIRE (&)
B AR ZFF BT : (48)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (Continued)

Singyes Energy-saving was registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under PRC law. In December 2012, the Group increased its capital
injection in Singyes Energy-saving by a total of US$6,109,300 (equivalent
to approximately RMB38,400,000). The additional capital injection was
satisfied by cash. Upon the completion of the additional capital injection,
the registered paid-up capital of Singyes Energy-saving increased from
US$12,737,800 to US$18,847,100.

Singyes Nigeria was registered in Nigeria with a registered capital of
US$9,000,000. Up to 31 December 2012, no capital injection has been
made.

Xinjiang Singyes was registered as a wholly-owned enterprise under PRC
law with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The capital injection
was fully paid in September 2012.

Changde Singyes was registered as a wholly-owned enterprise under PRC
law with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The capital injection
was fully paid in November 2012.

18. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

WERIRB R BEE R M AN EE
Eh¥ - AEER_Z—Z_F+=
A mMEEHENTEELR &
6,109,300 T (HHERHARKE
38,400,0007T) ° ¥ E KRB S K
FOEA o FF B ST 4 B AR A
FEMEUR IR A B 12,737,800 & 0 1%
HNZE 18,847,100 T °

JE B ZEEERNE A A5 - M
E7739,000,000% 7T - HEZT——
FrZA=+—81 - BREBTMH

MEEEDRERBEEEAMAEE
% - &R A AR 10,000,000
T TBEARZTE——_FhAZE
B -

BREAEDBEPBRERIMABE
% - S E AR A AR 10,000,000
Lo ABBEAR-_E——F+—A2
BHE -

18. FAfIRIA

Group

AEEH
2012 2011
—®-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT

Advance payments in respect of: LA TIE B TR R0E
Prepaid land lease payments TE 4 oA & FRIE 6,411 2,486
Prepayments for EETEBAR

construction in progress - 26,866
Purchase of machinery IR BRI 1,452 3,160
7,863 32,512
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. T ERAIRE

Group Company
AEE ARTH
2012 2011 2012 2011
T =—T——F ZT-ZHF T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETRT AR®F

Unlisted equity investments, FEEMRAKE
at cost: R
Weihai China BUSH I 29,718 29,712 12,209 12,207
Jiuhua New Energy NEFBEIR 380 - - -
30,098 29,712 12,209 12,207

FA - MBNELEEZRIREARAR
RAEERIENENERERAR

During the year, Xiangtan Jiuhua New Energy Management Co., Ltd
(“Jiuhua New Energy”) was established by Xiangtan Jiuhua Economic

and Construction Investment Co., Ltd. and the Group, with 81% and
19% equity interests held, respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the equity investment in Weihai China
Glass Solar Co., Ltd. (“Weihai China”) amounting to RMB29,718,000
(aggregate investment of US$4,720,000) and the equity investment in
Jiuhua New Energy amounting to RMB380,000 were stated at cost as
the Group has no influence and control over the entities. Meanwhile,
since there is no quoted market price for such equity investments, and
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near
future.

RAEN(TNEHEEIR]) - XARIHEE81%
K 19% B AN HE 2 o

RZZE——F+ZA=+—8" B8
FPHEABERAB(BEFR]) 2K
RNEE AR 29,718,000 (#4815 &
4,720,000 7T) R NEF LR 2 IR
& AR 380,000 TR ATIE - It Ty
HAASEEHZEERUELE I RE
HliE - REF - ARZRERELETS
®E - BENAEARBEMGTZEE
BEX EFZRAE HARBEEETSE
HE - AEEESNAHBELE -
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BAFE AR Y RE

20. INVENTORIES 20. &
Group
FEE
2012 2011
k- =Bt 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETTT
Raw materials RS 31,141 42986
Finished goods EER 32,243 20,861
63,384 63,847
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 21. BEAH
Group
AEHE
2012 2011
k- St 3 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETIT
Gross amount due from Rl A RRFRFIEMAEE
contract customers 48,840 48,025
Contract costs incurred plus FTEUA R NN _E B s
recognised profits less recognised AR EES B EREE
losses to date 600,885 682,094
Less: Progress billings W IREE A E IR (552,045) (634,069)
48,840 48,025
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. FEWEE SRIE R FEUEHE

Group
XEE
2012 2011
g% ZT——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Trade and bills receivables FEUE B 30E M IR R 1,283,999 994,106
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,555) (2,555)
1,281,444 991,551

As at 31 December 2012, trade and bills receivables contained
retention money receivables of RMB185,954,000 (2011:
RMB141,747,000).

The majority of the Group’s revenues are generated through
construction contracts and settlement is made in accordance with the
terms specified in the contracts governing the relevant transactions.
The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to its construction service customers. The credit period of
individual construction service customers is considered on a case-by-
case basis and set out in the construction contracts, as appropriate.
In the event that a project contract does not specify the credit period,
the usual practice of the Group is to allow a credit period of 30 to 150
days. For the sale of materials, a credit period ranging from three to
six months may be granted to large customers. Trade receivables from
small and new customers are normally expected to be settled shortly
after the provision of services or delivery of goods. No credit period is
set by the Group for small and new customers. For retention money
receivables in respect of construction works carried out by the Group,
the respective due dates usually range from one to three years after
the completion of the relevant construction works. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

RZE—=—F+=ZA=1+—0 EkE
SHAREREROEREREREAR
185954000 (ZZE——fF: AR
#141,747,0007C) °

AEBENKFDRANBBRESRE
£ WIRREEHERXZNARTIETE
MRS E - NREBR AR THERR
BEPBRERG—MEEH - @HIZR
RBEFHNEERRBRME - W5HA
REEERT (WEE) - §—RAEBA
MARFTREED  MAKENEN AR
ANTF30BHE150 HHEEH « Bt
HEMS  ARTABEPNF=EX
EAEER - RE/NDERIIEETFH
FE W B 5 5 OR R TR R R RS
RN ERMZERIENER - REBARR
NEIRFTIREPREFED - HNARK
BERNEETREENVERS - 28
BRI FEETRRTER-—E=F-
REE W ER W E ZFORRER AT
AERRKEMERERNOYM - B
EHFBARRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. FEWEE SRIE R FEW =S

(&)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the PG IR - RRE R A H IR EE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as AEEFENEWE FFHBERE T
follows: T
Group
AEHE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREETTT
Within 3 months =@EAR 737,358 658,022
3 to 6 months —Z=REA 381,710 210,406
6 to 12 months NET @A 102,257 62,111
1to 2 years —EMF 55,194 59,569
210 3 years ME=4F 4,412 380
Over 3 years =FME 513 1,063
1,281,444 991,551
The movements in provision for impairment of trade and bills FEWE 5508 M BN R 2R ERE
receivables are as follows: FEpnT -
Group
FEHE
2012 2011
it e —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFIT
At 1 January n—A—H8 2,555 3,060
Reversal (note 7) e (MRE7) - (505)
2,555 2,555
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the receivables are not expected to
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that are not

22. FEWE SRIE R B EE

(#&)

ERIBIEH FEUE 538 Th A B 15
HOEFPARH  AEMTIKRDZER
WE SR - ARE I EL %L BB
BEMER A EMEEIRERE

5= B R AR AR (B 0 8 W 5 SRR I R

considered to be impaired is as follows: WEIBIREIRITAOT -

Group

&R
2012 2011
k- =Bt 3 —T—%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETTT
Neither past due nor impaired KA AR RE 1,228,943 962,618

Past due but not impaired: BEHERRE

Less than 6 months past due BEN RN E A 47,515 27,450
6 to 12 months past due WA=+ @A 4,890 919
Over 12 months past due wET @AM E 926 564
1,281,444 991,551

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

RBHATFARRER R IB T RA 8T
MY MENCENZREFER -

EEMERRENEEFIRT RS 258
VEFAH - BaNEEERYELRE
REH  BRBEKRIDEEST 2K
Bl - XAREERRBARXFERE
HRERE - AEEYERZFEHRET
BEMERRIRREMEENRE
I
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group discounted certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying amount in aggregate
of RMB288,000,000 (referred to as the “Derecognised Bills”). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to six months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and
the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB14,303,000 (note 6) on discounted bills receivable. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during
the year or cumulatively.
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22. FEWEE SRIE R FEW =48

(#&)

R-TB——F+-A=+—8 " A5£H
BIRE TR EMRITEAMET &
E5 AR 288,000,000 7T 49 i I 22
(T8 [ ERER ) - RIREAIR -
RIFERER AR —2XEA - BiEP
BIEE% - WP BEBIRITIELD - AlRIE
WRARBEFEAGREANAERRLEHR
([HEE2H]) - EFRA - AREE
R I FER IR MR K05 Bk K B3R
B - Bt BRIEERRIEERRR
BIRREAAME - NEBREKIRRER
MBS AEEZERIEERR
BORBERSRMAZIBRANESE
BAAENHEEREE - EFRA - A%H
IR ERZENREESEN QR E
BTK -

FA AREERAEKEMRERE
A Y H 25 Sz AR5 14,303,000 7T (B
iE6) - WEBISE NS BERAFER
BEtlaR e -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. JAfIEIE « sTE R H M EK

RECEIVABLES I8

Group

FEE
2012 2011
kSt 3 —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT

Prepayments to subcontractors R BR R HEERIE

and suppliers 23,068 11,147
Deposits A 25,447 16,620
Other receivables H Y E 11,632 9,535
60,147 37,302
Less: Impairment o ORE (400) (150)
59,747 37,152

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits

BN RIR ~ 7T & K H At FEUCGRIRR (B 5

and other receivables are as follows: B ESHETIWT
Group
XEH
2012 2011
—E--F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
At 1 January wn—A—H 150 150
Provide for the year (note 7) FREE (MRET7) 250 -
400 150

BB EHESIYRE - il [Hib
FEYHIR ] NBEN S B E E D EIT
b B KO FCER RO UG IR Y

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR @

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in “Other receivables” above are related to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24, IRERIREXFEWLL K
PLEDGED DEPOSITS =
Group Company
FEH F. /AN
2012 2011 2012 2011

B —2—% IZ%B-Zf "T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTFRE ARKETT ARBTR ARKETT

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTAE R 698,088 315,496 7,927 2,669
Time deposits TEHATF R 214,820 53,982 - -
912,908 369,478 7,927 2,669
Less: Pledged bank balances A BB REME
for project bidding EHIRIT A - 508 - -
Pledged bank balances RITERWE
for bank loans (note 27) EHRITAEER
(B 27) 20,000 - - -
Pledged bank balances IRITIEEME
for banking facilities IRIRTT 4584
(note 27) (Mi&E27) 18,035 - - -
Pledged bank balances ERFENE
for letters of credit EIRIBIT4ER 44,106 452 - -
Pledged bank balances EREENE
for bills payable ERRITHERR 132,679 53,022 - -
Sub-total /NEt 214,820 53,982 - -
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIREZEY 698,088 315,496 7,927 2,669

@ China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24, IRERIREEEWLL R
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued) ER(E)
Group Company
FEEH F. /AN
2012 2011 2012 2011

- —T——F ZB--HF —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREBTI ARBTT ARETE

Cash and bank balances and R e RIRITEEERLA
time deposits denominated in: KEBTER
TP EEEIE
- RMB - AR¥ 896,804 354,318 - -
- Uss$ -ET 3,641 3,165 1 123
— HK$ - 12,400 11,196 7,926 2,546
- EUR$ - BT 63 - - -
— Naira -Ru - 799 - -
912,908 369,478 7,927 2,669
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, ARBTAI Bl LRAHMERE - A
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and i AR R B B A SN 5 R A 15 e 4
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange & - EEMTESERTE  AEEEE
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other BRERESCEIINEEBNBITHEAR
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BRRBEMER o
business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHESEEARITERFE 2 ZHF
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between KB REFERZEXBANF—H
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash E=@A  KAEEZABRESFRKM
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short TE o WIZIER R E BE AR S -
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are RITEBMBERFREFALRLET
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. R - (ZERIHIRITH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. FEFTE SFIE R FEFHRR
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RBRERR - ERERAHEENE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: SFIERENEBRRER TR ¢

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Within 3 months =@EAN 336,688 270,174
3 to 6 months —ZZ=R @A 133,064 11,394
6 to 12 months RETZER 24,874 4,419
1to 2 years —EWE 13,150 5,715
2 to 3 years ME=4F 3,284 1,982
Over 3 years =FHUE 4,305 4,428
515,365 298,112
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNESFEARSWBERSE—
settled within one to six months. EXEAREE -

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HAthFEFRIAR FEGHRRIE

Group Company
AEHE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—®B-—-F —T——%F ZB--Hf —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT ARETT ARETFRT ARETT

Advances from customers BRP#N 11,834 5,791 - -
Tax and surcharge payables RPN EN 64,629 69,613 - -
Accrued expenses BRI X 12,333 9,271 476 518
Other payables H e FRIE 86,463 130,624 3,234 1,791
175,259 215,299 3,710 2,309
Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and Hib 2B R S SR A& 6
have no fixed terms of repayment. BREEEEERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 27. M BRITER
Group FEE
2012 2011
—F-Cf “E—F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity = RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRI (%) HE  ARETT  EBEAE(%) 2 ARETT
Current #E
Bank loans BITER
— secured - EHA 5.00~7.87 2013 865,310 4.78~7.87 2012 515,500
Bank loans BITER
- secured - BEA Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR")+ HIBOR+
BT AR
EEidCN FEFE
0.95~3.75 2013 52,044 0.95~3.75 2012 53,647

917,354 569,147

Non-current E 1)

Bank loans RITER
- secured - B 5.04~6.34 2014 230,000 4.78~6.90 2013 56,750
5.04 2015 15,000
6.88 2014-2022 37,800
Bank loans RITER
— secured - BE#H HIBOR+ HIBOR+
BT BEHT
EE$iCN EERE
0.95 2014-2020 6,280 0.95 2013-2020 7,235
HIBOR+ HIBOR+
BT BEHT
EE$iCN EERE
3.75 - 3.75 2013 32,428
289,080 96,413

1,206,434 665,560
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)  27. Mt BiRITESR (8)

Company AT
2012 2011
—F-Cf “E——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity = RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRI (%) HE  ARETT  EBAE(%) B ARETR
Current wE
Bank loans RITER HIBOR+ HIBOR+
— secured - BiEA EHBRT BHBRT
EEidCN FEFE
0.95~3.75 2013 33,394 0.95~3.75 2012 37,434
Non-current k5
Bank loans RITER HIBOR+ HIBOR+
- secured - BHEA BEBT BEHT
EEiC) FEFE
0.95 2014-2020 6,280 0.95 2013-2020 7,235
HIBOR+
BERIT
FESN
- 3.75 2013 32,428
6,280 39,663

39,674 77,097
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)  27. Mt 2 SR1TEE (42)

Group Company
AEE ARTH
2012 2011 2012 2011
- =—Z—% IZ%B--f —T—%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETRT AR®TT

Analysed into DT RAR TR Ef
bank loans repayable: B ZIRITER :
Within one year —FR 917,354 569,147 33,394 37,434
In the second year FF 235,172 90,141 972 33,391
In the third year F=F 30,591 2,954 2,991 2,954
Beyond five years HEFEA L 23,317 3,318 2,317 3,318
1,206,434 665,560 39,674 77,097
Except for those bank loans with interest rates linked with the HIBOR B FI R AR VE IR IT R S 37 B I A0 ER1T
which are denominated in HK$, all bank loans are denominated in BEFUABTTEHESN - FTARITER U
RMB. ARKEE -
The Group’s overdraft facilities amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2011: K £ B4R 17 45 X %8 ¥ 20,000,000 7T
Nil), which had not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, (Z=—F : |\) HNEHETAEHE
are secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits FHIERA T AR 18,035,000 T
totalling RMB18,035,000. R ZRTELFEERRERRHAT

P -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(c)

(d)

Mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB275,061,000 (2011: RMB20,006,000);

Mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
which had a carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB91,604,000 (2011: RMB32,217,000);

Hunan Singyes’ equity interest directly held by Singyes
Green Investment with an investment cost amounting
to HK$227,000,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$227,000,000); and

The pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
RMB20,000,000 (2011: Nil).
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27. M ERITER ()

AEBETRITEREATSRERKE

b1l

(a)

(c)

(d)

AEBLHEBFORE B
BEMREEESRTHARS
275,061,0007t( =& ——4F : A
¥ 20,006,0007T) :

REBEEMN B ERBHIZ
B RBEHREAEHARE
91,604,000 7L(ZF——4 : AR
#32,217,0007T) :

HEXREREERF AN
MEXEE R_FT—-_F
TZA=Z+T-—BNRERER
227,000,000 7L ( = F —— 4 :
227,000,000%7T) : K&

AEBERNETERFHRE
R AR #20,000,000L(=ZF
——fF )



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued) 27.

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the
Group’s bank loans as follows (note 37):

(@) the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed
the Group’s bank loans of RMB280,036,000 (2011:
RMB305,000,000) free of charge;

(b) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB407,750,000 (2011: RMB207,250,000) free of charge;

(c) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
HK$71,930,000 (2011: HK$105,000,000) free of charge; and

(d) the Company’s director, Mr. Sun Jinli, has guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2011: Nil) free of
charge.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s current
interest-bearing bank loans approximate to their fair values. As at 31
December 2012, the fair value of the Group’s non-current portion bank
loans amounted to RMB289,929,000 (2011: RMB95,874,000).

Bt RERITER ()

BEAN - RAREERAREE TRITE
IR T IR (5E37)

(@ ARAREFILHLLEEE
ERAEBERITEXARE
280,036,000t (=T ——%F : A
FR# 305,000,000 7T) :

(b) ARFBBZLUHATENFEDE
EEBREARERAEERT
B 3 A R #407,750,000t( =
T ——4F: AR¥207,250,000
TT)

() ARARNEBFIAHTERFEDE
EEBEARAERAEBRTE
71,930,000 8T (= F——%4F :
105,000,000787T) : &

(d) AARESFHEELLEEE
ERAEBETERARE
50,000,0007C(=F——4F : ) o

AEERAR iiiﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬂf% A=
EEEEEQAAEERE BE-F

i S g E-i— Bib - AEBEZER
BHONRTERNAABERARE
289,929,000t (=T ——F: AR
95,874,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. iBEHIE
The movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRELCHEEERBEZEHNAT ¢

are as follows:

Group FEE
Deferred tax assets BEBIEEE
Government
grants
BIFF#EED
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—HF—H -
Deferred tax credited to FANTEBZE N ARLERIE (I 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 17,216
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—HEK
at 1 January 2012 —ET——F—HF—H 17,216
Deferred tax credited to FANEBENBRAPRLETIE (I 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 1,074
At 31 December 2012 R-_TE——_F+_H=+—81 18,290
Deferred tax assets of RMB18,290,000 (2011: RMB17,216,000) in EIERIEEE AR 18,290,000 7T (=
respect of unreleased government grants (note 29) were recognised. T——F: AR¥17,216,0007T) AH
¥ AR FE AN BRI 2 2 BRI 4 Bh (B =%
29) ﬁﬁﬁﬁgb ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

28. BEBLIA (48)

Group AEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIEEE
Withholding
taxes
Ein#
RMB’000
ARBEF T
At 1 January 2011 R-—E——F—H—H 19,899
Deferred tax charged to FRIE BN OEERIE (7 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 17,872
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—HEK
at 1 January 2012 —ET——F—HF—H 37,771
Deferred tax charged to FREBZEINBAELEHIE (£ 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 20,726
At 31 December 2012 R_E——F+_A=+—H 58,497

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China effective
from 1 January 2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with
respect to Taxes on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid
by a Mainland resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise
is 5% if the Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland
enterprise. As a result, deferred tax liabilities of RMB20,726,000
(2011: RMB17,872,000) regarding withholding income tax on the
distributable earnings (future dividend) of Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes
Renewable Energy, subsidiaries invested by Singyes Green Investment,
which is the Company’s subsidiary registered in Hong Kong, have been
provided for the year.

RERENAESHAREAE  A=F
TN\EFE—A—BE EPEAERKILZ
HINECENMINEREESRRE @ A
B 10% TE81RH - RBEPBEAPELEFS
FrRIA TR B B e B AR 1E
RRMOZE  MESCERIEEX
PE( 2 25% MR AR - BAERERM
EMNTFEAEREEMNKRSMTEMB X
#5% At - AFEBBARFRE
Az B AR BESAREIEE
Z BB A ARG B I SRR AL R A 4
DEEF RRAE) HIERATEHE#
#IRCE R E & & A K ¥ 20,726,000 7T
—ZT——%F: AR¥17,872,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

29. DEFERRED INCOME 29, iEFEUTAN
2012 2011
—¥—-=-F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
Government grants BT B85
At 1 January n—A—H 114,771 -

Government grants related to assets ~ FREWERE EHBRBTHED

received during the year 118,472 134,850
Released to profit or loss (note 5) B E =18 (MisE5) (3,168) (20,079)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 230,075 114,771

Deferred income represented government grants received by the BEWABAEBFAFTEER €K
Group in respect of the construction of a roof top solar farm in Hunan f & Ti2] TRERIEARSELE U R E A
under the “Golden Sun Program”, and other items of property, plant Y - BB REREIE B mIREIM BN
and equipment during the year. B e

The deferred income is released to profit or loss at the annual FEWAZFE S ERED B8R - WA
instalment to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant BIEEEENTEHFEAFR -

assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

-

30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. B#TRA
Shares 40
2012 2011
k- St 3 %
US$’000 US$'000
FET FEx
Authorised: VERE ¢
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 % &% E{E 0.01 7T

of US$0.01 each Y AR 12,000 12,000

Issued and fully paid: BEETIESR

632,861,997(2011: 525,633,332) 632,861,997 (= ——F :
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 525,633,332 %) B EE

0.01 EJTHE B 6,329 5,256
Equivalent to RMB’000 e ARETT 42,606 35,841
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: REAR - BETRAEZEEHNT :

Number of Issued

shares in issue capital

EETREE EEITIRA

RMB’000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H 490,900,000 33,589

Issue of shares BT 35,000,000 2,269

Share options exercised 1TE AR 453,332 29

Redemption of shares B EIRR D (720,000) (46)
At 31 December 2011 and RZZE—F+=-A=+—H

1 January 2012 r—ZF——F—HF—H 525,633,332 35,841

Issue of shares BT (a) 105,126,666 6,633

Share options exercised 1T IR (b) 2,101,999 132

At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-_A=+—H 632,861,997 42,606
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30.

31.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

(a) Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 25 May 2012, 105,126,666
ordinary shares of the Company of US$0.01 each were issued
as bonus shares to ordinary shareholders on a ten-to-two basis
by way of capitalisation of part of the Company’s contributed
surplus on 15 June 2012.

(b)  The subscription rights attaching to 2,101,999 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$3.58 per share
(note 31), resulting in the issue of 2,101,999 shares with a par
value of US$0.01 each.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include directors and employees of the
Group. The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on
19 December 2008 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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(@ BEBREN-_ZFT—Z-_FHA
T RBRITZARBRRRE
AemitE RZT——FX
A+HAB  #BEREARRNFE
AROEE BETREEM
AR o) E A -\ TR AR R BT
105,126,666 % & i% HE {50.01 %
TLR AR R EBIRVERALAR

(b)  2,101,99917 BERRIERE P 2 FRAEHE

REBEENR3.585 7T (MIFE31)

771 - #EM3172,101,999 B FA%
E{E0.01 =TT Z B °

FRRs#EST &

ARRRBEAETE ([ZTE ) 2R
TRHAREHNKINRLMEREROE
B2 EERUKBNER - ZEHENE
ERSCEERRESIAKEET - %
HERZZEENFTZATIABEERR
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BA AR Y RE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
vesting period of 0.5 to 2 years and ends on a date which is a period of
10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31. BElx#ERTEI (%)

BYARAES THAHKEER
R REEEABBATZERE 5
ARFRBELFNTER 2HE - 11t
S MER+ B A IR AR T AR AR
TERRIBIIIFNTES - WFE
B S A+ 2 (EREAHE - LBBAR
BRI R 2 B 1T AR 0 2 0.1% S EL
BERBARRBNE L BHZBET
& )38 5,000,000 7T + HERRERAR
B LEAMGRE A -

RHEBERiEZ 20T HARABENR
HEA -+ \BARINR#AKES
AR LTRER - IR EREZ
TTHRHMESRETE  WAIRFFEMF

FEARABERRHBBER T
FZzBRIE -

BREZITEERESFET - ETE
RATERRE @ ()VARBRD R EARE
BHRMER T ZWHE ¢ (i) ARF
BRI ER Z L B AT A ER 5 A 7
Rz FEHTE - KGR ZEE °

R T TR A AR B R
RRE LIRERER -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. FERRtEstEI(B)
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during FRNZeTE T BRITE 2 BIRENT
the year:
2012 2011
—S—C—F —T——%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
I of options s of options
TEE EkEE IRE EREEE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BRET T3 BRRETT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 3.97 37,027 4.12 31,480
Granted during the year FARD - - 3.22 6,000
Adjusted during the year FRFE 3.31 7,405 - -
Exercise during the year FRTTEE 3.58 (2,102) 4.30 (453)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 3.29 42,330 3.97 37,027
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MERs#ERTEl (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options PREARERITEEREZITEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ITESHNT

Number of options '000*

REETH
Before adjustment After adjustment
ik i
Exercise Exercise
price HK$ price HK$
per share per share
hefore after
adjustment adjustmen As at As at
T @ 31122011 Bonus share 31/1212012
Exercise period Bk g R Exercise adjustment Erercise ~ R-F-2%
frieg BT SR#En +-B=+-8 f1iE kAR fiff +=R=t+-8
23/01/10-22/07/19 ? ZF-A-+=RZ 430 358 8,170 - 1,645 (1,583) 8,262
T-NVEtAZTZA
23/07/10-22/0719 7 TELAZ+=AE 430 358 8,363 - 1,668 (359) 9672
T-NELAZTZA
23/07/11-22107/19 :g——ﬁtﬂ ZfzR% 430 358 8494 - 1,692 (190) 9.9%
“E-NFTAZTZA
27/05/11-26/05/20 :g——ﬁﬁﬂ Zt++tAZz 333 2.78 2,000 - 400 - 2400
ZERAZT/A
2710512260620 =% _ﬁﬁﬂ T+HZ 333 2.78 2,000 - 400 - 2,400
“ZCTERACTSA
27/0513-26/05/20 —E—=FHA-t+AZ 333 2.78 2,000 - 400 - 2,400
—7 7¢£H +/\EI
111012101021 =% _ﬁ'ﬂﬂ' SE 322 2.68 1,200 - 240 - 1,440
“Z--%1ATH
11/10/13-10110/21 _f—:ﬁ'ﬂﬂ' HE 322 2.68 1,200 - 240 - 1,440
“EC-ETATH
11/10/14-10110/21 :T Eﬁ'ﬂﬂ' HE 322 2.68 1,200 - 240 - 1,440
_?_ —5+ATH
11/10115-10110/21 ﬂﬁ'ﬂﬂ' SE 32 2.68 1,200 - 240 - 1,440
_?_ —E+A+H
111016-101021 =%F-~E+A+-HZ 3.2 2.68 1,200 - 240 - 1,440
_2_—¢+H+H
Total 51 37,027 - 7,405 (2,102) 42,330
* Upon completion of the bonus share issue which was approved by the * REKE-_E——FhA-_+HBHE
shareholders in an annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 ITHIAR AR A F RE R R
May 2012, the exercise price of the share options granted under the AR TR REZGTEREZ
Scheme and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full AN AE 2 1T MR ARITEERERT
exercise of the subscription right attaching to the outstanding share Mt s 2 REB R E RS TERY F R
options were adjusted in accordance with the terms of the Scheme BT ZIRNEE BIRRZ B 215
and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter from the Stock FEBMCHHSA-—TSERFNAR
Exchange dated 5 September 2005 relating to adjustments to share AEEEREARZ KM 2@
options. 15| -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 42,329,999 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 42,329,999 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$423,330
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,283,580) and share premium of

approximately HK$197,417,714 (before issue expenses).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company
had 42,329,999 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 6.69% of the Company’s shares in issue as

at that date.

32. RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 72 to 73 of the financial statements.
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ZHEBARERT - HeEMEIIET
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6.69% °

s
#F%E
AEEARF B 2 GBS B R

MEDRRHBREE2AZTE3E
ZEARREBEN -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32.

RESERVES (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance with PRC
generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC GAAP”) and after
offsetting accumulated losses from prior years, should be made to the
statutory reserve fund and the enterprise expansion fund, and before
profit distributions to the investors. The reserve fund can be used
to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital. The enterprise
expansion fund can be used for business development or to increase
capital. The percentages to be appropriated to the reserve fund and the
enterprise expansion fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are
determined by the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-
owned subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the reserve
fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative reserve fund
reaches one-half of the registered capital, the appropriation is no
longer mandatory.

Difference arising from acquisition of non-controlling interests

Pursuant to an agreement entered into among Messrs. Liu Hongwei
and Sun Jinli and Singyes Renewable Energy, a subsidiary of the
Company, on 1 November 2011, Singyes Renewable Energy acquired
25% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes from Messrs. Liu Hongwei
and Sun Jinli, at the par value of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB12,602,000). Consequently, the difference of
RMB2,100,000 arising from the acquisition of non-controlling interests
held by Messrs Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli in Zhuhai Singyes was
recognised as reserve.

32. i (E)

FRE(E)
o BT 2 AT T (A

RE(RFEARKMBEHINGELED
FR)RAREBEEREKRERBEARN
REER - AERRBRHEAR LR
EEMAN (REEEFRTERR
KA EE 7 ik AT ) BEE ##E
HEROXBRES - ZHEESAUA
FEHREBRIGEMER - RAAER
E ] AREBERICEMER < HNE
MEARBNERBESROERERE
SHEDLLHAESSETE - I - A
BECEEASMANBENELFERE
& MENERBEESHEIL/TD
R10% - REHES R E2EDEME
AR—H0 - DERBIE -

WlE PR e 2 ERR

BEBEALHETERRESEBEEREAR
A EAREEFRERN - ——F
+T—RA—RAEITNHE  BEFER
BRAKEERKESBEEIREEA
#2,000,000% 7T (48 & RN 4 A R &
12,602,000 7T ) Y & TR 5 B 3 25% X
o EL - WIEBIATE S ERESIBE
EFRIEEREREE ZEARE
2,100,000 FLEER AfREE o
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BAFE AR Y RE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. fi#m (E)
Company AAT
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements therein REARBAFE  ARRREEEBER
for the current and prior years are as follows: BT :
Share Share Exchange
premium Contributed option fluctuation Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total
Tty Bk BB RRERE  ERRDHE RitE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At31 December 2010  R-Z-T%
and 1 January 2011 +ZA=Z+-Bk
“Z——%-f-H 230,036 723 39,644 (9,356) (75,066) 185,981
Total comprehensive IEERAERLE
loss for the year - - - (15,444) (24,165) (39,609)
Issue of shares BIRG 196,004 - - - - 196,004
Exercise of share options T BRk#E 1,601 - - - - 1,601
Transfer to share option 17 BRERERZ
reserve upon the R
exercise of share options 628 - (628) - - -
Final 2010 dividend ZE-TERBRE - ) - - - 9)
Shareissue expenses  E{TRIER (4,185) - - - - (4,185)
Redemption of shares  BEEA{7 (Fi7£30)
(note 30) (2915) - - - - (2915)
Proposed final 2011 REZZ——ERBRE
dividend (note 12) (F3E12) - (17,045) - - - (17,045)
Transfer to contributed ~ ERFIEABH
surplus (30,000) 30,000 - - - -
Equity-settled share option [RA & B IRIE L B
arrangements (note 31)  (M31) - - 7,669 - - 7,669
At31 December 2011 ~ WZZT——F
and 1 January 2012 +-ZA=+-Ak
“F--F-A-H 391,169 13,669 46,685 (24,800) (99,231) 327,492
Total comprehensive TEERABREE
|oss for the year - - - 45 (13,269) (13,224)
Exercise of share options ~ T#ERk#E 5991 - - - - 5991
Transfer to share option ~ {7(FEBRERERZ
reserve upon the exercise  BEARIE (R
of share options 2455 - (2,455) - - -
Issue of bonus issue ATRREAT (M3 30)
(note 30) - (6,633) - - - (6,633)
Proposed final 2012 BE-F-—FRHRE
dividend (note 12) (FzE12) - - - - (35921) (35,921)
Equity-settled share option FRREEBRIEL
arrangements (note 31)  (M3#31) - - 4314 - - 4314
At31 December 2012 WZZE——F
+-A=1-H 399,615 7,036 48 H44 (24,755) (148,421) 282,019

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA AR Y RE

33.

34.

-

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 27 March 2012, Xi'an Zhongrun Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an
Zhongrun”) increased the equity interests in Singyes Photovoltaic by
way of additional capital injection of an amount of RMB4,000,000 by
cash.

As at 31 December 2012, non-controlling interests represented 40%
equity interests of Singyes Photovoltaic held by Xi'an Zhongrun.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the bank loans of RMB464,110,000
(2011: RMB311,250,000) granted to Zhuhai Singyes, bank loans of
RMB15,000,000 (2011: Nil) granted to Hunan Singyes, bank loans
of RMB25,000,000 (2011: Nil) to Singyes Renewable Energy and the
bank loans of HK$23,000,000 (2011: HK$20,000,000) granted to
Singyes Engineering are guaranteed by the Company.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

33.

34.

iR

RZE—ZF=A=++H BALEH
FEEFRAR([ARER]) BEREIINE
B4 2% AR 4,000,000 7T #4077
HERHR 2 BRA R

RZZE——F+-A=+—8 - FFER
BmiEF L EEE AR EREMN40%
[&HE o

HARMRE

RNZBE——F+_A=+—H8" 1
HIHRBEEZBETERARE
464,110,000t (=T ——F : AR¥
311,250,0007T ) * IR TR EE 2
R 1T E A R #15,000,000L( = F
——&F:\m) BRETEENERZ
517 B 3k A B % 25,000,000 ( = &
——F B ARRRTEETRR R
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. EEHERH

fEBFEBEA

As lessee

AEBERBEEENLHFEARETHA
EVE - ZEVEHEOBERR R —K
MF - RIBEHRR - ARERER T
FHE AT A BEEEE RO R R

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of one or
two years. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows: REMESEENT
2012 2011
g% —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFIT
Within one year —FR 940 2,322
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRF (BIEEEMFT) - 349
940 2,671

36. COMMITMENTS 36. KiE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 35
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

B b 3P FE 35 w2 A 2 T AV EESN
RBEIR - NEEA THEAHRIE

2012 2011
—F-=-F —=—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AREFT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B REE
Buildings ¥ - 78,710
Machinery RS 4,467 8,184
4,467 86,894
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. AEA RS R &R
BALANCES
(@) Related party transactions (a) FEHRXS
As at 31 December 2012, guarantees provided by related parties RZT—=—F+=—A=+—8"
of the Group are as follows: AEEBESREZEROAT ¢
(i)  the Group's bank loans of RMB280,036,000 (2011: () AEBEZBRTERARE
RMB305,000,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei 280,036,0007L( =& — —
free of charge; F: A R ¥305,000,000
T BB ETELEE
R
(i) the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2011: Nil) (i AEERTERARE
were guaranteed by Mr. Sun Jinli free of charge; 50,000,00070( = & — —
F:T)HELBEELE
ER
(i) the Group’s bank loans of RMB407,750,000 (2011: (iy ZEERITERARE
RMB207,250,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs Liu 407,750,000 ( =& — —
Hongwei and Sun Jinli free of charge; and F£: A R ¥207,250,000

TO) BB ER RS
TEERBBMAER &

(iv) the Group’s bank loans of HK$71,930,000 (2011: (ivy X" &EE 2 #E17TEXR
HK$105,000,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs Liu 71,930,000 L (=& ——
Hongwei and Sun Jinli free of charge. £ : 105,000,000 7T ) M

Bl E R RSB EER
B SR -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. FAEARX IR (B)

BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

(b) FEEFZEEASHIFHN

Group
2012 2011
—¥F-=-F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AREFT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYA S
benefits in kind 3,678 3,405
Pension scheme contributions ~ BIRE TSR 87 75
Equity-settled share IEAGEE 7 IR R 2
option expense - 1,596
3,765 5,076
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments BRAEENRITHREARNG HE—

are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts. In addition, the Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk. At 31 December
2012, approximately 70.1% (2011: 74.4%) of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank loans bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

38.

I EEEEER RBUR

(#&)
FllZ= 5%

AEBFERNTSZNEEHRRER
EAEBNRRZEREBER

AEBMZBRANARBRTEEBE
BHEHMEME o Wi REBW K
FAAEAT R SR 1 B LA SR R R @G o A
TE——H+-A=+—H A£EEY
70.1% (ZF——%F : 74.4%) 2 i B3R
TEFIZREEFETE o

TREFASEEAEH EBETE
ERZYE) HHETRARED 26
B - EAEBURS B -

loans).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
tho, BB F
(©:20F -3 wm, (EL)
RMB’000
ARBFT
2012 —E—-—%F
Hong Kong dollar BIT 100 (583)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 583
2011 —T—%F
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (933)
Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 933
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. M EPEEE H Y BB E
AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

IMVES LR

Foreign currency risk

REBPERXZEERR - ZFRBK
BREEREUMIREEE AN EBEL

units’ functional currencies. MES -

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TR Bt A T R E T R ) A] g
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ g TEMEHRBFTENELT &
REERRE RO ADEF (ER
EESERBBEZARBEES) WK
REDW - AEERSETHIEFE -

exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities). There is no impact on the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
currency rate before tax
Ex HanzmF
EH (T i, (EL)
% RMB’000
ARBFT
2012 -2
If RMB weakens against HK$ MARE B TRE 5 (2,976)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ WARE LB TTHE (5) 2,976
If RMB weakens against US$ AR R ETTiE 5 182
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARE N ETHE (5) (182)
If RMB weakens against EUR$ AR H BTz E 5 3
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ i AR ¥ B BT HE (5) (3)
2011 —T——%
If RMB weakens against HK$ i AR BB Tz E 5 (4,106)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARE B TAE (5) 4,106
If RMB weakens against US$ WAREHETTIE 5 207
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARE R ETTHE (5) (207)
If RMB weakens against Dirham i AR 5 B R I8 R (& 5 78
If RMB strengthens against Dirham i AR BRI FHE (5) (78)
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
held in major financial institutions located in Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Moreover, as the
Group’s exposure spreads over a diversified portfolio of customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

38. AR EEERRBUR

(#&)
(EEEE

RekALEEY AR FH - B5K
HEWHOR - REMESREEMNRE
BEREAEEMATHSHEERRDN
REEERR -  AEBBAZERER
ReEEVHERERRAEESEEE
RPEREAR SREERE -

AEREERAILBAEENE=TAL
R REBMBORRE @ FIERIRER
GRRZNEFALBERRERFT -
BEAN - FRUGRIRMBEIGRR L » A
SEMMARNEREARIL TERX - Uk
S ARARENMEFASEERR -
RI2EEANEESTERR

RENE 2 E

AEBERERADESETAESR
HESERNER - ZTAA AR
TARESBEE (PIAnEKE HFIA) 1
AU RBEAHREEBRERE

AEBWRBESTEITRNEE SR
BUREELSREEREBEPMNRENK
THEMME WG FEZED -

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

38. gﬁgﬁﬁwﬁﬁéﬁﬁ B R B

R|EIR - ERCATHERIEBENRT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

R AEEZERABIHBERMT

is as follows:
Group FEE
3 toless
than 12
Less than months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months =EDR years 5 years Total
REXE  DR={ER +=f@R —-ERE AFNL Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT  ARETR
Asat31 December ~R=ZT—=F
2012 +-A=1+-H
Interest-bearing 2 BRITER
bank loans 18,650 317,905 602,436 297,313 24,073 1,260,377
Trade and ERESHER
bills payables B RE 136,971 113,254 265,140 - - 515,365
Other payables HiEATRER
and accruals [ERtHE 89,832 - - - - 89,832
245,453 431,159 867,576 297,313 24,073 1,865,574
Asat31 December ~ RZZ——F
2011 +-A=1+-H
Interest-bearing i EHRITER
bank loans 16,214 131,168 445982 99,109 3,382 695,855
Trade and ERE STER
bills payables ENEE 204,642 93,470 - - - 298,112
Other payables HibEITER
and accruals JERtRE 132,888 - - - - 132,888
353,744 224,638 445,982 99,109 3,382 1,126,855
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. A EPEEE H I RBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Company EAT]
3 toless
than
Less than 12 months 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months ZEDR years 5 years Total
REXE  OR=EA +=f@R —ERE EFUE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R

Asat31 December ~ R-Z——4F

2012 +-A=+-H
Interest-bearing B BIRITE R

bank loans - 261 33,984 4,180 2,351 40,776
Other payables HibEIER

and accruals [ERtEE 3,710 - - - - 3,710

Guarantees givento  [FISRFTIEHAD
banks in connection BRI F—F
with loans granted to ~ B AFEE
subsidiaries FFER 18,650 163,500 235,610 105,000 - 522,760

22,360 163,761 269,594 109,180 2,351 567,246

Asat31 December ~ RAZE——%

2011 +=A=+-H
Interest-bearing bt BERITE

bank loans - 4980 34,714 37,338 3,382 80,414
Other payables HibfERFIE R FEET A

and accruals 2,309 - - - - 2,309

Guarantees givento  [MIER1TIELAY
banks in connection ~ BEER T4
with loans granted to ~ f{BRAEE@E
subsidiaries RER 16,214 115,000 167,500 28,750 - 327,464

18,523 119,980 202,214 66,088 3,382 410,187

ZE-CFFR PERXAGERMERER AR @




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFE AR Y RE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises interest-
bearing bank loans, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals and tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. Total equity comprises owners’ equity and non-controlling
interests stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. A EPEEE H I RBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Group XEE
2012 2011
—T——f —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥ETT
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITE R 1,206,434 665,560
Trade and bills payables B E 5708 MBI 515,365 208,112
Other payables and accruals E b FE A FE K B AT EOE 175,259 215,299
Tax payable FERIRRIR 26,140 77,067
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RESEED (698,088) (315,496)
Less: Pledged deposits R HEIRTE R (214,820) (53,982)
Net debt FAafE 1,010,290 886,560
Total equity B 1,845,070 1,528,199
Total equity and net debt Ml ROFETS 2,855,360 2,414,759
Gearing ratio B2 & 35% 37%
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. ERMEEAEIE
As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Group has no RAGFBREMMAR - NEBBREEM
events after the reporting period that need to be disclosed. WEABREHEATING -

40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 40. LLEES
The presentation of certain items in the financial statements has been sz A TEHE 225 EEETI
revised to comply with the current year’s presentation. HERNFEZE2R -

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. #LEFERTR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by UHHREN _E—=F=A=-+HHEE
the board of directors on 25 March 2013. EEeEREETE -
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